# T.R.N.C NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF HEALTH SCIENCES

# LEADERSHIP BEHAVIOR AND ITS RELATIONSHIP WITH THE EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE FOR THE KARATE ATHLETICS: THE CLUBS OF KURDISTAN REGION OF IRAQ

YOUSIF RASHEED SAEED

# PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND SPORTS MASTER THESIS

NICOSIA 2017

# T.R.N.C NEAR EAST UNIVERSITY INSTITUTE OF HEALTH SCIENCES

# LEADERSHIP BEHAVIOR AND ITS RELATIONSHIP WITH THE EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE FOR THE KARATE ATHLETICS: THE CLUBS OF KURDISTAN REGION OF IRAQ

(KURDISTAN REGION OF IRAQ)

# YOUSIF RASHEED SAEED PHYSICAL EDUCATION AND SPORTS MASTER THESIS

# SUPERVISOR ASSIST PROF.DR.NAZIM BURGUL

NICOSIA 2017

### The Directorate of the Institute of Health Sciences

This study has been accepted by the jury of Physical Education and Sports teaching program as a Master Thesis.

Thesis Committee:

|                        | (Signature)                       |
|------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| Chair of the committee | : PROF. DR. CANER AÇIKADA         |
|                        | Near East University              |
|                        |                                   |
|                        | (Signature)                       |
| Member                 | : ASSOC. PROF. DR. CEVDET TINAZCI |
|                        | Near East University              |
|                        |                                   |
|                        | (Signature)                       |
| Supervisor             | : ASSIST. PROF. DR. NAZIM BURGUL  |
|                        | Near East University              |
|                        |                                   |

Approval:

According to the relevant articles of the Near East University postgraduate study - education and Examination Regulations, this thesis has been approved and accepted by the above mentioned members of the jury and the decision of Institute Board of Directors.

(Signature)

# PROF. DR. HÜSNÜ CAN BAŞER

Director of the Institute of Health Sciences

GIFING

# DEDICATED TO MY FAMILY SPECIALLY MY BROTHER KAMERAN

#### ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I would first like to express my deepest and great appreciations to Almighty, Most Gracious Allah for giving me the ability and patience to complete this work.

My sincere appreciation goes to my thesis advisor Assist. Prof. Dr. Nazim Burgul for his professional advice, support and words of encouragement, without his support, this thesis would have never been completed.

Many thanks are offered to my family; especially my parents and my brother who believed in me and gave me enough love and support that brought me to this point. I also would like to thank my mother; her encouragements and sacrifices through this long process stimulated me to finish this work. Special thank goes to my brothers and sisters and Dr. Khalid Shaban who supported me to finish this work.

#### ABSTRACT

YOUSIF RASHEED SAEED. Leadership behavior and its relationship with the emotional intelligence for the karate athletics in the clubs of the Kurdistan region of Iraq, Near East University, Institute of Health Sciences, School of physical education and Sports, Master Thesis, Nicosia, 2017.

This study was designed to investigate the correlation between leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletics in Kurdistan region of Iraq. The study is aimed at identifying the correlation between the leadership behaviors of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletics of various clubs and teams located at Kurdistan region of Iraq. The study sample consists of 200 participants of advanced category age; 100 coaches and 100 athletics. Amongst this participants are 26 karate sport clubs in Kurdistan region of Iraq, which consists of cities like Duhok, Erbil, Kirkuk and Sulaymanyah all were sampled and were participants in the karate championship which was held in the year 2015-2016 championship year in Kurdistan region of Iraq. A descriptive research method was used and employed for the collection of data. The research was conducted questionnaire base research. Leadership Behavior scale for coaches by (Alkawaz, 2010) and Emotional Intelligence scale for athletics which was prepared by (Alsaeed, 2012), the researcher asked two Arabic language specialists, to translate the questionnaire to Kurdish language to ensure the validity of the scale, and the reliability of the questionnaire, (Cronbach's alpha) in this study for Leadership Behavior Scale: 0.87 and Emotional Intelligence Scale: 0.94 was attained.

The data was collected, computed and analyzed by the use of SPSS program. The findings of the study showed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletics of clubs in the Kurdistan region of Iraq. The results also showed similarities in clubs and a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence for karate athletics of all clubs Duhok, Erbil, Kirkuk, Sulaymaniyah. Also, the results of these study are consistent with the concept of hypothesis; that there is a significant correlation between the

leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletics in clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq.

Conclusively, the study finds a connection between moral connection and relationship between leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletics clubs in the Kurdistan region.

Key words: Leadership Behavior, Emotional intelligence.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ACKNOWLEDGMENTS   | i   |
|-------------------|-----|
| ABSTRACT          | ii  |
| TABLE OF CONTENTS | iv  |
| LIST OF TABLE     | vii |

# **CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION**

| 1.1 Statement of the Problem          | 4 |
|---------------------------------------|---|
| 1.2 Importance of this study          | 5 |
| The importance of this study lies in: | 5 |
| 1.3 Research hypotheses               | 5 |
| 1.4 Research aims                     | 5 |
| 1.5 Restrictions                      | 5 |

## **CHAPTER 2: GENERAL INFORMATION**

| 2.1 The Concept of Leadership Behavior                            | 6  |
|---|----|
| 2.1.1 Definition of Leadership Behavior                           | 7  |
| 2.1.2 Qualities of Leadership Behavior Administratively           | 7  |
| 2.1.3 Styles leadership behavior                                  | 8  |
| 2.1.4 Coach Leader Style  | 9  |
| 2.1.5 Theories of Leadership Behavior                             | 10 |
| 2.1.5.1 Series of Leadership Behavior Theory                      | 10 |
| 2.1.5.2 Effective Leadership Theory                               | 11 |
| 2.1.5.3 Life-Cycle Theory of Leadership                           | 11 |
| 2.1.5.4 The Way to Target Theory                                  | 11 |
| 2.1.6 Categorizing the Coaching Principles                        | 13 |
| 2.1.7 The Basic Principle to the Leadership for Athletic Training | 14 |
| 2.2 The Concept of Emotional Intelligence                         | 14 |
| 2.2.1 Definition of Emotional Intelligence                        | 15 |
| 2.2.2 Emotional Intelligence Components                           | 16 |

| 2.2.3 The Scope of Emotional Intelligence | 16 |
|---|----|
| 2.2.4 Theories of Emotional Intelligence  | 17 |
| 2.2.4.1 Emotional Reflex Theory           | 17 |
| 2.2.4.2 Social Intelligence Theory        |    |
| 2.2.4.3 Multiple Intelligences Theory     |    |
| 2.3 Literature Review                     | 20 |

## **CHAPTER 3: METHODOLOGY**

| METHODOLOGY  | 22 |
|--|----|
| 3.1 Research Method  | 22 |
| 3.2 Research Population and Sample   | 22 |
| 3.3 Research Instruments   | 23 |
| 3.3.1 Leadership Behavior Scale  | 23 |
| 3.3.2 Emotional Intelligence Scale   | 23 |
| 3.4 Validity of (leadership behavior) and (emotional intelligence) Questionnaire | 24 |
| 3.5 Procedure of the Study   | 24 |
| 3.6 Data Collection  | 24 |
| 3.7 Data Analysis  | 24 |
|  |    |

## **CHAPTER 4: RESULTS**

| 4.1 Anlysis of th | ne questionnnarie  | 24 |
|-------------------|--|----|
| 4.2 The results   | of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and   |    |
|                   | emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs  | 25 |
| 4.3 The results   | of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and   |    |
|                   | emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Erbil karate clubs  | 26 |
| 4.4 The results   | of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and   |    |
|                   | emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Kirkuk karate clubs | 26 |
| 4.5 The results   | of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and   |    |
|                   | emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Sulaymaniyah karate |    |
|                   | clubs  | 27 |

| 4.6 The results of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and |
|--|
| emotional intelligence of karate athletes at Kurdistan region of Iraq          |
| karate clubs28   |
|  |
| CHAPTER 5: DISCUSSION  |
| Discussion   |
|  |
| CHAPTER 6: CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS                                     |
| 6.1 Conclusions  |
| 6.2 Recommendations  |
|  |
| REFERENCE  |
|  |
| Appendix   |
| Appendix (1)44   |
| Appendix (2)45   |
| Appendix (3)46   |
| Appendix (4)48   |
| Appendix (5)   |
| Appendix (6)   |
| Appendix (7)54   |
| Appendix (8)   |
| Appendix (9)   |
| Appendix (10)60  |
| Appendix (11)62  |
| Appendix (12)64  |
| Appendix (13)66  |
| Appendix (14)  |
| Appendix (15)72  |
| Appendix (16)73  |
|  |

## LIST OF TABLE

| Table | e 1: Sample Distribution Athletics on Provinces in Kurdistan Region22 |   |  |  |
|-------|---|---|--|--|
| Table | 2:  | Sample Distribution Coaches on Provinces in Kurdistan Region23          |  |  |
| Table | 3:  | Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional   |  |  |
|       |   | intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs25                 |  |  |
| Table | 4:  | Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional   |  |  |
|       |   | intelligence of karate athletes of Erbil karate clubs                   |  |  |
| Table | 5:  | Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional   |  |  |
|       |   | intelligence of karate athletes of Kirkuk karate clubs27                |  |  |
| Table | 6:  | Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional   |  |  |
|       |   | intelligence of karate athletes of Sulaymaniyah karate clubs27          |  |  |
| Table | 7   | : Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional |  |  |
|       |   | intelligence of karate athletes at Kurdistan region                     |  |  |

## CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

We live in a time were athlete's progress in an exponential growth, it is very necessary to keep up with, follow and keep up the pace of this development, highlights our ability to innovate, in terms of renewal, invention, broken repetitive routine, generate new ideas to serve as a substitute as a more accurate and developmental information which can be used to support and enhanced the sports movement. Moreover, the athletic institutions and organizations have a better and positive impact on community and individuals, as one of the most important area for real investment in human wealth, characterized by all the other areas being having more space for inaction and participation which concentrate on personal behavior and trying to modify the aim towards the mean goal; to create good citizens by preparing suitable environment to work and forming positive attitudes among individuals. The athlete as an entity is a social movement which comes at the top of every social organizations to breed qualified leaders who are capable to lead as proving scientifically, in terms of behavior, intellectually and socially. With the rise in demand for great athlete's roles both in the social and national issues, all this together with the athletic role on the global arena. The athletic progress-level is linked to pretty much every level of their team leaders and the development of sport is highly related to the leadership behavior of the sport coaches. Also, athletes are required to consistently cope with the stress of hard training and competitive pressure, which includes understanding, regulating their emotions and that of the other individuals (teammates, opponents, coaches, referees, and spectators). In terms of leisure-time physical activity, people require high levels of motivation to continue participating and most forms of physical activity involve some measures of interpersonal interaction; gymnasium attendees, fitness instructors, behavior can be governed, at least in some cases, by emotional intelligence. Improving body size proves to be an important role in sport performance and physical activity, a critical understanding of this concept is specifically important to consultants or practitioners who are targeting the implementation of evidence-based interventions that enhance sport performances or exercise adherence among athletes. Our aim in this composition is to systematically review the current trends base on sport and physical activity (Magnusen & Perrewé, 2016).

The most important skill to a coach is how to deal with people properly in order to make then have a sense of belonging in an organization in which they work so that this method can be imposed on team leaders who are meant to be familiar with the basic concepts of behavior on the part of its principles so that he can be aware of the dimensions of the humanitarian roles imposed on him and his investment. This knowledge focus on how to accommodate the most important humanitarian aspects of all collective actions for a leader which is to encourage and motivate subordinates to deal with groups and team building, considered the leadership an educational and social process which is necessary for every group that is in need of social contribution which leads to success among their members, regarded as the sport's mode for the coach and the most integral aspect which leads to the success or loss as well. This is because it has a very important role in the members of the group and in finding the right atmosphere either in training or in competition as well as encouraging the staff which are working with the coach like players and administrators which can help in achieving their goals, gaining achievement in athletics.

The leader is the one who takes on the responsibility and takes charge of management and encourage those who are working with him as a team to take part in activities which can help to achieve the desired goals (Ted, 1965). In this process, attitude, beliefs, hopes, aspiration, incentives and conducts of the administration, are directly or indirectly observed by the managers and which is been used by team members, material and moral means, put at their disposal to achieve their desired goals, the methods and techniques which are adopted for the organization is the most important and the most dangerous and critical term as it reflects the administrative behavior which leaves an effective positive or negative mark. The word behavior and actions are not synonymous but internal behavior itself is that the activity of the team members as a result of his relationship with certain environmental conditions which are constantly evolving, amending and dealing with these circumstances even bring out the best of the team members, a series of choices among a range of possible responses, and represents the importance of human conduct in getting the best the results of investment in human resources and the use of the energies of individuals. The outcome of the group behavioral values and attitudes in the community, such as the characteristic behavior of the group pressure on individual, where the group is trying to make its members compatible with them accepting them in their membership, also a notable behavior of leadership behavior is of great significance to express the leaders' behavior in athletic activities and sports, The leadership behavior varies from one game to another, according to gender and from coach

to coach in respect to the kind and privacy of each game. Researchers pointed that the nature of the game affects the developing leadership behavior directly or indirectly as individual or team games. There are games which needs comparison between partner or competent, while there are games which need contact with some instruments. As discussed comparing the athletes if they are single players or team games (Chantal et al., 2003).

The emotional intelligence is vital topics in psychology in general and sports in particular, studies have indicated similarity between the study of emotional intelligence in the sporting side and other studies in general psychology, emotional intelligence varies from one person to another and from a player to another, from an activity to another depending on the nature of it, according to the individual differences among the players, it describes adaptive emotional functioning as an individual difference characteristic in emotional processing Individual responses to interpersonal emotional information which encompasses the identification, expression, understanding and regulation of personal or others' emotions, and permeate successful performance and physical activity behavior in sport, the concept of emotional intelligence involve processes which presumes emotion in various adaptive ways, through perception, emotion involves accurately in recognizing emotions oneself and others, overarching level that reflects emotional dispositions of the individual, harnessing emotion involves using emotional factor to achieve relationships and well-being, and potential to influence human performance, refers to the effective regulation of emotions in one's self and others, emotional intelligence comprises of emotional competencies like harnessing emotions effectively, understanding of perception (Mayer, Salovey, & Caruso, 2008), the light of the change in various athletic situation that require individual emotions, caused anger, aggressive behavior and mental stress, has shown the importance of emotional intelligence in the best situations to act in stressful situations resulting from competition, with regard to emotional reactions to the athletes (Meyer & Fletcher, 2007), the players capabilities in competition without tension and emotional intelligence in the components, whether in the field of education or sports, are different in the field of application in real life (Jaber, 2013).

The personal attitude of the coach plays a very important role in reaching the desired goal and in order to achieve those objectives and tasks, the coach must act as the field commander, as sports development is significantly affected by the sense of the player towards the coach (sinjer, 1972), the karate sport is considered an individual game that requires the player to depend on his own potentials in order to win. Karate is not only an

effective means of self-defense, but it also gives those who practice it the opportunity to acquire healthy-balanced lifestyle derived from body building, Karate also helps humans to acquire discipline and it increases human's capacity to focus and create self-awareness. Regular training provides Karate trainee an interactive nature and appropriate environment to learn and practice the skills needed in real life pursuits such as humility, respect, and loyalty, as well as acting positively when dealing with different situation of these skills, integrity of any behavioral discipline represents key principle to which the art of Karate is built on. Besides, a good Karate player can increase his strength, his inner-balance, sympathy towards others and helping them.

Karate player seeks to make the right decision in all situations because of devotion, loyalty, and honesty is the essence of Karate and the biggest challenge for anybody is to control his inner self when facing difficulties (Smith, 2014).

The researcher believes that emotional intelligence is a way to recognize emotions and to express them appropriately and expressed effectively by athletes in light of this and because of sports competitions form the position of the opposition on the athletes, and this type of stress, requires a high degree of emotional balances, which requires a high degree of sportsmanship, emotional intelligence and good behavior in the positions without tension, they're supposed to be there when a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence for karate players at clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq. As discussed by Chalak is his research, he showed that there is a correlation between levels of fighting for groups and leadership mastery, he argued also showed that players with Karate advanced, advanced level – Intermediate level, advanced level – modest level, possess a high level in leadership mastery, modest level – Intermediate level does not have high level in levels fighting (Chalak, 2013).

#### **1.1 Statement of the Problem**

The study subject; leadership behavior and the emotional cleverness are very important and modern athletic subject. Chalak's study in (2013) indicate that leadership and leadership behavior, are crucial and must be present with karate instructors, and the most important of these characters is being a leader of the of his subordinates, as a leader, they must possess behaviors such as knowing when they are prevented to act in a way or manner and freedom to act responsibly and hit the ground to produce running results in outstanding performance, higher quality and affiliation to work. It is important to know the levels of leadership behavior and emotional intelligence of the karate athletes and coaches who played Karate , and the relationship between them through the experience of the researcher being a karate athletes, coach and referee, contained the research problem by the below query:

\* Does the leadership behavior have a relation with emotional cleverness for the karate athletes in Kurdistan region – Iraq?

#### **1.2 Importance of this study**

The importance of this study includes:

- Constructing an argument as to the extent leadership behavior and its relationship with the emotional intelligence of karate players with club's teams in Iraq's Kurdistan region as case studies.
- 2. Differences in leadership behavior and its relationship with the emotional intelligence of player's karate clubs teams in Iraq's Kurdistan region

#### **1.3 Research hypotheses**

There is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athlete at clubs of Kurdistan region of Iraq.

#### 1.4 Research aims

The research aims to identify the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence relationship with karate athlete team's clubs in Kurdistan region of Iraq.

#### **1.5 Restrictions**

- 1. The human sphere: the karate players in clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq.
- 2. Field time: the academic year 2015-2016.
- 3. Spatial field: the headquarters of Iraq's Kurdistan Karate clubs.

## CHAPTER 2 GENERAL INFORMATION

#### 2.1 The Concept of Leadership Behavior

The evolution of the concept of leadership behavior found in the last decades where confirmed by researchers, the evolution of leadership conceptions created different theories like the trait, the behavioral and the situational leadership approaches (Feher & Reich, 2016). Team leaders were described as empowering if they used coaching and communicative support behaviors. Coaching and communicative support has been proven to be the core facet of leadership behaviors to achieve the goals or the behaviors in trying to organize work (Georgianna, 2016). Similarly, entrepreneurs who show leadership behaviors may be perceived as helpful coaches, facilitators of communication and role models for their employees that lead the leadership efforts of other humans and direct them and the ability to affect others in order to achieve the goals at the specific time (Laschinger, Wong & Grau, 2012). The term leadership as described by (Vecchio, Justin & Pearce, 2010) is a behavior commonly shared within the organization and widely allocated among the entire workforce and his try to encourage the followers and help them to work easily the way to connect with specific procedures. Research results have revealed various types or styles of leadership implemented in different organizations, cultures and working frames, and every leader is characterized by their own style, which is influenced by organizational culture and is likely to produce a management style that prevails and represents a standard of conduct for other leaders. Some leaders incorporate leadership styles depending on the situation or their feelings at a given moment, while others adhere to the same style regardless of the situation they have to face (Zahari & Shurbagi, 2012) as such, recent studies confirmed that coaching and communicative support was a distinct dimension of leadership in autonomous work teams as well as in more centralized structured work settings. As documented by these studies, leadership was practiced within entrepreneurial teams as well as in firms led by single entrepreneurs. When leaders used coaching and communicative support, employees reported greater organizational commitment and felt empowered to lead themselves toward the set goals (Černe, Jaklič & Škerlavaj, 2013).

Leadership depends on certain aspects of an individual and their ability and capabilities and particular in the field of sports which the sports leadership tries in achieving the ability to work in different atmospheres which require different levels of capability which are dependent on the coaches individual aspects and their ability and strengths in dealing with the task based on the personal experience and the type of the activity and other factors (Clark & Waldron, 2016).

#### 2.1.1 Definition of Leadership Behavior

Leadership behavior is defined as the ability to get people along towards the achievement of a given task or the achievement a common goal without coercion (Soriano & Estrada, 2016). And considered an effective instrument by which a manager can establish a feeling of mutual objective and unity in a group, thereby ensuring maximum efficiency of the group. To achieve this, the manager has to have special skill in understanding individual and group behavior, developing social interaction, understanding the environment outside and inside and cooperation. Any organization weather profitable or non-profitable are required to be competent and sustainable depending on the quality of leadership style that will practiced. Leaders adopt behavioral processes to influence individual and groups towards set goal (Girma, 2016). Also leadership behavior is about influencing, motivating, and enabling others to contribute toward the effectiveness and success of the organization of which they are members who can determine the effectiveness of the organization (Gebert, Heinitz & Buengeler, 2016).

#### 2.1.2 Qualities of Leadership Behavior Administratively

Character traits is a central pool of a being a leader and good morals, calm and balance in dealing with things and sobriety and prudence when making decisions, physical strength and health, and safety, self-control when necessary, respect for one's self, respect for others, positive at work (House et al., 2013).

Capacity for innovation, good conduct and personal qualities that the administrative leader must possess which qualifies him for this leadership are; activity, ambition and interest in the work, open-mindedness, and must be a leader in practice, the forces of personal thoughtful ideal patient and certainty of himself, nice, interested in the conditions of his subordinates (Castaño et al., 2015).

Leading director skills are special abilities such as producing knowledge, information and the actual practices in addition to the individual personal willingness and availability to divide the required technical skills, humanitarian skills, cognitive skills and administrative skills (Campbell, 2015).

Artistic skills is the ability to use the tools, methods and procedures which help to perform a specialized task and skilled technical rise in the first administrative level, where it focuses on the ways and methods of work, and less technical skill; higher we go in the administrative level.

Human skill focused on the ability of the director to work effectively with individuals, and some believe that managers spend more than half their time in the interaction with individuals and focus on leadership skills, motivation of individuals and communicate effectively with those around him (Northouse, 2014).

Managerial skill and cognitive skills includes the ability of the manager to recognize complex and dynamic issues, and examine multiple conflicting factors influencing the problems in addition to the ability to deal with the situations in order to achieve the goal of the organization (Groves, 2016).

#### 2.1.3 Styles leadership behavior

The leadership behavior styles are specific styles and specific for the leader behavior, we can easily notice under the leadership process, the studies classification of the leaders' behavior as follows:

Authoritarian leadership is a style where by the leader dominates his relationship with his subordinates and keeps most of the authorities to himself. Put the plans, specifies the politics, give the decisions and practice a great ability to direct and interfere the common affairs to limit all the work and do it by his knowledge or direct leading way from his heart, the authorized leader takes from the negative motivation, intimidation as a basic weapon to control subordination. When we make deference between the authoritarian leadership and authoritarian athletic trainer we will see that the trainer match to authoritarian leadership. For example, the basketball trainer want to make a training plan he will focus on the physical fitness 10%, tactic and skills 30% in his plan, one of the player will suggest to start attention on the skills and plans 50% physical fitness and 50% to skills and plans. It can be noted that stricter trainers don't let them to take part in his decision and Identify the training plans as he sees that it is appropriate and do not listen to the opinions of the players.

Autocratic leadership is the authoritarian leadership particularly at the centralization of authority and subordinates are not given a chance or the followers are not given chance to take part in the leadership process but the autocratic behavior character motivation and movement and do a lot of accomplishment rapidly, and can also make decisions and planning, organizing and the subordination. Form the autocratic leadership style because the individual should be allowed to make decisions (Leban, & Zulauf, 2004).

Democratic leadership is the common principles where by the leader take decisions to allow other members of the organization participate in planning. He seeks the opinion and advice from the group which eventually form a number of suggestions or exchange of opinion, and leave freedom to choose the suitable exchange and this develop the spirit of innovation and invention with subordinates having a say and then lead to the production and development. This depends on the leader to motivate lobbying persuasion and keep the unity of the group and its coherence in the way to control all appearance of contact struggle and disagreement that comes between subordinations (Burke & Collins, 2001).

Unite ferrous leadership, this is the kind of leadership that leaves the complete freedom to limit and put their goals and take decisions that relates this and the leadership characterized in this style with excessive expand to authorize the power where the group organs have complete freedom to take decisions that relates to the groups' goals and limitation and then decides a way to achieve and choose the type of the work in time. when the leader process is unable to find an equipment and materials, or helpless to achieve the individual goals, here we can say that this kind of leadership leave the unleashed authority to the followers in condition that warrant them to take decisions this type of success depends on individual that has high level of intelligence and knowledge in the institution of scientific university of researches and studies (Eagly & Johannesen, 2001).

#### 2.1.4 Coach Leader Style

Training behavior that aims at improving the level of players in the way that directs them and increase the repetition of the training, democratic behavior of athletic trainer in which a player is allowed to share or limit the goals of the team and training ways, autocratic behavior that put him in the position away from players and issued the orders individually without consideration to any player in the team, social support behavior the trainer with the team organs and tries care and hide common positive feeling with them, rewarding behavior that gives the player more consolidation rewarding and reinforcement in the way that always confessing their work and rewarding them (Austin, 2016).

#### 2.1.5 Theories of Leadership Behavior

Explanatory theories of Leadership Behavior and methods of responses are as follows:

#### 2.1.5.1 Series of Leadership Behavior Theory

Determine which of the leadership model by two; the amount of power possessed by the leader and the amount of freedom given to the followers or subordinates. There are seven patterns in identification of leaders:

Leader who makes the decision, know the problem and puts alternative solutions and choose the solution without reference to one of his relations with his subordinates rigid and cruel.

Leader who sells his decision, it puts the appropriate solutions, but it differs from the previous pattern of trying to convince his subordinates to accept the resolution, and resort to the style of cooperation, rather than impose a decision and that decision lists the features and its importance to the organization.

Leader offers his thoughts and calls for questions, the decision taken by him but lets his subordinates to understand his thoughts and his goals by working to achieve. This is an opportunity for decision-leader and his subordinates to discover the goal of the resolution.

Leader displays a final decision which is subjected to changes, it identifies the problem and puts alternative solutions and choose the one he deems appropriate solutions initially and after that his subordinates will meet to exchange views.

Leader displays the problem, and gets to share in the work of the decision, leader here differs from previous patterns and because it meets his subordinates after that fixes the problem and by the decision-making process to allow them to participate in proposing solutions to choose is finally the right solution.

Leader knows why and he is trying to ask the group to manufacture the decision, authorizing subordinates the right to take the decision which eventually fixes the problem, according to organization possibilities available. Leader allows subordinates to know that within the limits defined for them whereby, allowing his subordinates freedom in decision-making, which in turn would accept if they approved it, where is this pattern utmost freedom in the conduct of subordinates and the only limitation is the limits of the possibilities available to solve the problem (Meuser et al., 2016).

#### 2.1.5.2 Effective Leadership Theory

Showing Fiedler two important types of leaders are: Dictatorial leader commander found in traditional systems and the military, and the commander here focuses on decision-making by himself and the rest only receive orders and how to do the implementation. The Democratic leader is a new model of leadership where the leader focuses on his relations with the community and the use of human resources through participation. Fiedler pointed out three factors and how each has an impact under certain circumstances to make leadership effectiveness, these are; fore site of the leader, the construction or installation task and personal relations leader (Beenen, 2016).

#### 2.1.5.3 Life-Cycle Theory of Leadership

Blanscherd and Hersey gave life leadership cycle theory and the theory are trying to provide the leaders with some understanding of the relationship between effective leadership model and the level of maturity of the followers and the focus of this theory on the followers, because the personnel is very vital element in any leadership position. Life-cycle theory of the so-called defined by the ability of the relative independence in the following matters: Take responsibility and attainment and motivation of the individual and the group. The theory suggests that the behavior of leader must move from, high interest in the job, a low interest in relationships, high interest in relationships and low interest in the job, a low interest in relationships (Tam & Gray, 2016).

#### 2.1.5.4 The Way to Target Theory

Mitchell and Hugs argued that the way to goal theory of leadership, which aims at effective leadership and effectiveness in personnel by recognizing the means and the roads that lead to the achievement of goals, business and personal goals of life (Northouse, 2012).

-This theory explains that there are four types of leadership namely;

The first, leadership guiding gives specific guidance and arrange to work in order of priority and then ask the officers to abide by the laws and instructions that drive the process of achievement and be a positive relationship between satisfaction and personnel between the direct commander of the functions of the mysterious and negative relationship in obvious tasks (Cassidy, 2015).

The second, supporting leadership characterized here is the leaders' affectionate terms of giving attention to social status and living conditions of belonging and the leader makes little action for a comfortable work atmosphere for employees from the psychological point of view and treat everyone equally, suitable for those who work under pressure and frustration (Magnusen & Perrewé, 2016).

The third, leadership participation is characterized by leaders who would consults officers and take their suggestions before placing the decision should be made, and the specific characteristics of each personnel and attitudes that lead to the participation and for leadership effective delivery (Nahavandi, 2016).

The fourth, accomplishment leadership emphasizes the achievement distinguished at the same time puts his trust in the personnel and what they have to do to live up to this trust and strive to reach the completion of a high and get a high level of confidence in the ability to meet the challenges and achieve goals, standards, and through studies found that there is a positive relationship between the amount of achievement and expectations of personnel and whenever the leader is interested in achievement whenever officers are confident in their achievement, but a substantial relationship between the interested leadership and achievement among followers expectations that no efforts will lead them to the effective achievement (Pearce, Wassenaar & Manz, 2014).

#### **2.1.6 Categorizing the Coaching Principles**

Researchers have struggled in categorizing the theories the behavior of the leader based on the fact that there are different dimensions of leader's behavior. It can be observed in an easy manner in the process of leadership. The studies categorize the behavior of the leader in the following different categories:

Categorization based on the process of decision making, the imposing leader is a type of leadership which depends on imposing the leader opinion using this paradigm for scaring and motivating others to do the things whether they are willing or not undertaking these decisions (Magnusen & Perrewé, 2016).

The democratic leader this type depends on contribution from everyone in forming opinions and distributing the roles, and everyone is required to deal with the problems of the work in a team-like manner and the leader participates via supporting their members to express their opinions. This creates a sort of balance and congruity between the different conflicting opinions in a way that none of the opinions is imposed on the other and expressing respect for those who do not agree with the leader (Cassidy, 2015).

The unguided leadership this type of leadership, the leader does not interfere or merge with other only in the case they are required or asked to in case where disorganization occurs and riot is a consequence and time consumption and as a result the team will be bounded to be dissolved. The leader leaves the rope on the ship and leaves their members with full responsibility and also this type does not allow the potential of other individuals to appear (Cotterill & Fransen, 2016).

Categorization based on the source which the leader takes their authority from the official leadership or the unofficial, based on the incentives from the positive leadership and the negative leadership, according to the leader method of working the leader who depends on individuals, the organized leader and the plan-taking leader, Mesh and Person from the participating leader and the suppressing leader. Categorization from imposing behavior is the leader who is mostly interested in the individuals and less in the work, and the unorganized behavior is the leader who is interested in the work more than the individuals, and leading the team is the leader who is interested in both the work and the individuals, the balanced is the leader who balances both the individual and the work, the humanitarian is the leader who is not taking care of the work and the individuals, the

directed leadership or humanitarian leadership participating and leadership w0hich strives to success (Kim, Wells & Kim, 2016).

#### 2.1.7 The Basic Principle to the Leadership for Athletic Training

Control principle of the basic principles of time management and planning to respect all the things, should control over our lives or control choices, but do not control the results of those choices, Efficiency is a wonderful thing and it supposed to speed up what is best, Independence of accomplishment focused on the traditional time management achievement, and access to what you want, and the removal of anything that hinders it from the road, the ability and time management are inherently a range of capacities and have some capacity to become a master of improving the quality of life, the efficiency achieved in personal capacity and personal administration is usually through the model, but leadership is the model to be followed. Usually, administration is working within the system or leadership they are operating above the system (Magnusen & Perrewé, 2016).

#### 2.2 The Concept of Emotional Intelligence

The pioneers of emotional intelligence suggested that problem solving and wise decision making required both thought and feelings or logic and intuition. Through the current development in intelligence concept and its types and contents, it's no longer wise to look back the term success as distinctive performance in testing intelligence. They further asserted that certain individuals possess the ability to carry out sophisticated information processing of emotions and use the emotions as a guide for thinking and behaving more effectively than others (Husin et al., 2013). ability to think with numbers may be great, while giving seven different patterns referring to intelligence, which are lingual intelligence, athletic intelligence and body motion intelligence amongst individuals which means the ability to comprehend the others feeling, and the cleverness of the individuals inner sides, which refers to ability of understanding feelings and its static motivations (Salovey & Mayer, 1990). Intelligence varies according to the life situations on which it works. For ordinary practical purposes, however, it suffices to examine for intelligences which may be mechanical intelligence, social intelligence, and abstract intelligence. The definition was published after they tried to develop scientific method to measure the differences between individuals within sentimental ability. Social intelligence is the ability to understand and manage men and women, boys and girls to act wisely in human relations (Brady, 2016). Abstract intelligence is the ability to understand and manage ideas and symbols, such as words, numbers, chemical or physical formulae, legal decisions, scientific laws and principles and the like. This measurement discovered that there are people that have a higher capability than others to determine all of their feelings especially the feelings of others, and solve the problems relating to sentimental issues, they made a scientific development for this concept and attempting to establish measurement tools for it. Their developed definition is closer to be real intelligence as an emotional intelligence in which expresses group of real sentimental capabilities for an individual (Petrides, 2016).

According to Goleman 1996, rational intelligence is not enough to succeed in life, evidence of which is the fact that emotional intelligence rather than intellectual quotient has recently captured the public attention. Studies today have shown that indeed emotional intelligence is cognitive and it is crucial for success as other types of intelligence. Research has also shown that IQ is no longer considered a good predictor of how effective an employee will be in work and life, rather suggesting that emotional intelligence is a better predictor in determining employee outcomes such as authentic leadership, organizational productivity, management of job stress and mental health (Petrides, 2017).

#### 2.2.1 Definition of Emotional Intelligence

There are many special definitions regarding emotional intelligence and varied amongst scientist and researchers on sentimental intelligence. Firstly, some scientists shared the idea and came up with the concept of social intelligence, and Strindberg who presented the concept of self-intelligence where they smoothed the path to determine the idea of sentimental and emotional intelligence, or an active intelligence as they named it. Recently, researchers vastly interested in the definition of emotional or sentimental intelligence say that, it has a big interest to foretell individual qualifications in their fields and their lives especially (Pool, 2017). That emotional intelligence as described consists of unidentified capabilities and the skills that affect the ability of individual to adapt with the environmental requirements and its pressures (Holt & Wood, 2017). Also Mayer and Salovey defines the emotional intelligence as the ability to comprehend the emotions and expressing them, to attain and generate the emotions to help thinking, and to understand the emotion and emotional realization (Salovey & Mayer, 1990). And the ability to comprehending the emotions of others, that this may lead to organizing and developing the growth of emotion that is in connection with those emotions through self-awareness and managing the emotions, motivations, sentimental and social skills (Boyatzis, Rochford & Cavanagh, 2017). And individual will be able to monitor the feelings and emotions of the other people's inner sides, and express those feelings, distinguish them, and utilize these information to direct the thinking and self-organizing (Ferudenthaler & Neubauer, 2005). Golman also defines the emotional intelligence as the capability to understand our feelings and other people's feelings and stimulate ourselves to manage our emotions and our relations with other people actively (Bacon & Corr, 2017).

#### 2.2.2 Emotional Intelligence Components

Goleman believes that emotional intelligence consists of five dimensions which are: self-awareness where the person realizes strengths and weaknesses, and takes this knowledge as a basis for decision-making, and handling emotions. One generally knows how to deal with the feelings, on the basis of emotional intelligence, and he motivate a state of internal arousal that occur within the individual because of the lack of balance resulting from the need of the individual direction towards achieving its objectives and has the enthusiasm and perseverance of continuing the quest, and empathy to read the feelings of others through their voices or changes in their faces. The knowledge of the feelings of others as a basic human ability, Goleman Emotional Intelligence confirms that the learner and the learning starts since the first years of life and continue throughout the life of the individual, and social skills it means the ability to read other people's feelings, and see their reactions through the out-come of their signals or different overtones (Asiegbu, 2016).

#### 2.2.3 The Scope of Emotional Intelligence

May researcher mentioned multiple scopes for emotional intelligence that generally focus on three kinds of abilities, which are: the ability to recognize the emotions, the capability to control the emotions and the ability to apply emotional thinking skills. Mayer and Salovey mentioned that the emotional intelligence consists of three scopes; Realizing emotions which indicates the ability of an individual to realize the emotional features and attitudes, and this includes recognizing and evaluating the emotions and demonstrating them, the awareness of an individual about emotions, related philosophy to emotions and the ability to differentiate between them with proper express, emotional comprehension means understanding the scope and the truth behind certain emotion, and distinguish between synchronized and corresponding emotions. Managing emotions is the ability to self-soothe and alleviate the emotions of others after facing strong shipments of feelings. Emotional facilitating of thought is the use of feelings within the thinking process with the aims of improving, thus to give chance to the emotions in order to take our attentions, utilizing emotions to attain a particular goal is significant for selective and self-motivation (Karimi et al., 2014).

Bar On, 2002 classified the emotional intelligence into five scopes, they are; personal scope, social scope, adaption, pressure management and general mood (Asha & Krishnan, 2016).

Mayer and Salovey, 2002 sets emotions of the same person or the emotions of others, but has the ability to express emotion in a precise and flawless way that will prevent misunderstanding by others (Coetzee & Harry, 2014).

This model is considered as the mixed models like Baron models and what distinguishes it from Mayer and Salovey is that Golman theory specializes on emotional intelligence in the working field, aimed at the development of his model to work on social and emotional competencies and performance theory, while Mayer and Salovey theory and the theory of Baron are considered as public theories for emotion and social intelligence (Martin-Raugh, Kell & Motowidlo, 2016).

#### 2.2.4 Theories of Emotional Intelligence

Explanatory theories of Emotional Intelligence and methods of responses are as follows:

#### 2.2.4.1 Emotional Reflex Theory

Mayer and Salovery, 1997 confirmed emotional reflex as a group of mental abilities likened to the supplying and processing the emotional reflex, leading the thinking and emotional understanding besides organizing and managing the emotional and mental reflex as a supplier for the emotional reflex needs three mental activities, recognition of other self emotional and expression, organizing self emotional of others, Using the adaptive emotional to achieve self-goals (Pertegal-Felices et al., 2014).

Mayer and Salovery, 2000 states that the sample of the emotional intelligence as ability evolves from emotion which contains information about relation, the other samples focuses on the core of self-relation with other and thoughts, but the importance in this theory is the information linked to this relation. Remind able and imagination. These relations are composed of a group of emotional indicators, for this the emotional intelligence is the ability on remembering the meaning of emotional and the relation between them, and suing these emotional as a base to deduce and solving problems (Moradi, 2016). The Mayer and Salovery theory, 2002 are composing of four internally linked abilities, contributing in generally in the logic thinking, this can be linked to the general mental ability, and arranged pyramidal on the basic psychological processes to more complex or complicated operations, it supposed to grow and develop during aging and gaining expertise in a way which is very much like development and progress in the acquired mental abilities (Bowen, 2014).

The basic level in pyramidal arrangement to the intelligence emotion is recognized by emotional awareness which is formed and developed in the early stage of childhood, the followed level is a supply and process of the emotional information, which compose of the ability to coordinate between the emotional experience and the general intelligence. In the third level, the person will be more capable to understand the emotional and recognize them, this include the "who and why" develop and progressed the emotional, the last level include the highest degree of emotional capabilities from the perspective of progress, which is the ability to control and regulate emotions, for example, the ability to control the anger and anxiety inside person or community (Barndon, 2001).

The summary of these four abilities is to determine the emotional effect for the self and for others, using emotional in leading thinking, understanding emotional operation, managing emotional and self-situation which are composed of emotional challenge. These abilities are important in keeping balance in self-psychological health, any disruption in these abilities is accompanied by defect emotionally and socially (Lopes et al., 2006).

#### **2.2.4.2 Social Intelligence Theory**

Bar-On 2006, presented sample of the emotional intelligence called mixed integration, the intelligence emotion according to this theory is to expand emotional intelligence understanding. This theory considers the emotional intelligence as group of un-skillfulness, which are linked to self and social composition and understanding self and other, together with building relation adapting with environmental changes and managing emotion (Dikkers, 2016).

Bar-On refers to the understanding of emotional intelligence social in basic composition, it is the ability to recognize, understand and excreting the feelings and emotions, the ability to understand and link other's emotion, the ability to control emotions and lead feelings, the ability to manage the changes and adapt with problem and solving them, the ability to produce positive feelings and stimulate self-motivation (Fakhreldin & Hattab, 2015).

Dawda and Hart indicate that emotional and social intelligence has the ability to understand and express his self actively, understand others and gain the ability to face life challenges and daily pressure. Initially, this depends on the self- internal ability, so as to realize his self and abilities, express his self in a proper way. Has determined fifteen basic compositions the emotional intelligence: self-regard, self-respect, interpersonal relationship, impulse control, etc (Dawda & Hart, 2000). Also, there are groups of indicators to improve the emotional intelligence such as, Improve relations, Improve communications with others, forming emotional skills, act honorably, being respectable, Improving the occupation, managing the changes with confidence, power in work, feeling trust and positive, decreasing the tension levels (Delahanty et al., 2007).

#### 2.2.4.3 Multiple Intelligences Theory

Gardiner 1983, sees that convinced evidences indicate mental skills relatively independent (human intelligences) to the limits of effect of each mental intelligence is not clear or the present quantity skills, also sees that it is difficult to ignore that some skills are relatively independents from each other, the person in an environment can formulate and manipulate many ways, although the understanding of intelligence has another concepts which gives them a general meanings. The intelligence is the ability to produce a perfect and useful or consists of providing precise service to culture and human. also emotions are group of skills that makes the person capable to solve his own problems (Sachathep & Lynch, 2016).

#### 2.3 Literature Review

There are some studies regarding emotional intelligence and leadership behavior regarding the coaches and players in clubs and these includes a study by Sozyk and Mejirian, in the tested the relationship between emotional intelligence and transformational leadership. Where amounted 63 sample individuals, and the results showed that emotional intelligence positively associates with transformational leadership, and that this link the degree of self-awareness commander (Sosik & Megerian, 1999). Also, in the study of Ducket and EcForlan, shows the way the leadership's behavior, and leading with psychological and social skills correlate with the mental processes of the sentimental intelligence of players as well (Ducket & EcForlan, 2003). and a study of Gould et al, the results indicates that there is a positive influence of the coaching efficacy on leadership styles, and lack of investigation on the relationship between emotional intelligence and coaching efficacy, it seems that emotional intelligence and coaching efficacy can be justified via the relationship between coaching efficacy and leadership style (Gould et al., 2002).

The study conducted by Huang et al, in mediating role of coaching efficacy in the relationship between emotional intelligence and leadership style among 323 US basketball coaches, the results indicated that leadership style can be predicted by emotional intelligence and coaching efficacy, and coaching efficacy played partial mediating role in the relation between emotional intelligence and leadership style (Huang et al., 2013). and the study conducted by Jose, that reduction in path coefficient between emotional intelligence and leadership style after inclusion of coaching efficacy was significant, suggesting relative mediating role of this variable and that the a significant correlation on all of them between coaches and Athlete (Jose, 2013).

A study of Higgs and Aitken, an exploration of the relationship between emotional intelligence and leadership potential and study aimed to explore the importance of emotional intelligence, the possibility of leadership and the study was conducted in the development of leaders in the New-Zealand center and study sample consisted of 40

director working in the public service center and they have to answer to the emotional intelligence scale and the results showed that there is a relationship between emotional intelligence and the possibility of Leadership (Higgs & Aitken, 2003).

The study by Palmer and Wales, the study addressed the relationship between emotional intelligence and effective leadership, the sample consisted of 43 participant, the study results showed that there was a significant relationship between the specific component of the transformational leadership and emotional intelligence, and in particular to encourage the creative individual and appreciation, which are linked to a moral capacity the self-management of emotions and the others (Palmer & Walls, 2001). Also a study by Rosete and Ciarrochi, the correlation between emotional intelligence and effective leadership, the results showed that elevated emotional intelligence they have no conflicts, the mood positive activates creativity and contribute positively in solving problems, and that there is a significant correlation between the effective leadership and emotional intelligence (Rosete & Ciarrochi, 2005).

The study by Okasha, in the improve the quality of training programs on leadership behavior skills training to avoid mistakes with the leaders the results showed that a significant correlation between leadership behavior skills of leaders and training programs (Okasha, 2000). also a study of Barling et al., in the relationship between the leadership and intelligence Emotional, and included sample (60) as director, the results show that emotional intelligence is compatible with the three dimensions of leadership Manufacturing (the impact of role models, encouraging creative, and attention to individual considerations) and that Compatible with one dimension of leadership and reciprocity is the (conditional penalty), and interfere with emotional intelligence, revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior and emotional intelligence (Barling et al., 2000).

# CHAPTER 3 METHODOLOGY

#### **3.1 Research Method**

This descriptive and correlative study was used to measure the prevalence of leadership behavior, emotional intelligence and correlation rate, and relationship with for the karate athletics the clubs of Kurdistan region of Iraq.

#### **3.2 Research Population and Sample**

Research population was determined through the intentional as a way of including players and coaches of clubs, in Kurdistan region, of the participated advanced category in the karate championship in Kurdistan region of Iraq for the season 2015- 2016. The total number are 150 players and 127 coaches distributed among thirty clubs. The research sample consists of 100 players and 100 coaches, as shown in Table 1 and 2.

| Provinces    | Total number of athletics | Final number of athletics | Number of clubs for<br>each province |
|--------------|---------------------------|---------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Duhok        | 40                        | 28                        | 6                                    |
| Erbil        | 30                        | 22                        | 4                                    |
| Kirkuk       | 30                        | 17                        | 5                                    |
| Sulaymaniyah | 50                        | 33                        | 11                                   |
| Total        | 150                       | 100                       | 26                                   |

**Table 1.** Sample distribution karate athletics on provinces in Kurdistan Region

| Provinces    | Total number of<br>Coaches | Final number of<br>Coaches | Number of clubs for<br>each province |
|--------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Duhok        | 35                         | 28                         | 6                                    |
| Erbil        | 27                         | 22                         | 4                                    |
| Kirkuk       | 25                         | 17                         | 5                                    |
| Sulaymaniyah | 40                         | 33                         | 11                                   |
| Total        | 127                        | 100                        | 26                                   |

 Table 2. Sample distribution Coaches on provinces in Kurdistan Region

#### **3.3 Research Instruments**

The researcher has two instruments which were used in the current study as follows:

#### 3.3.1 Leadership Behavior Scale

The researcher has prepared a questionnaire for the leadership behavior scale by Alkawaz, 2010, including 40 questions that characterized for coaches, and five alternatives next to each questions, scoring was as follows: 5 Always, 4 Often, 3 Sometimes, 2 Rarely, 1 Never, thus the highest value of the scale is 200 and the lowest value of the scale is 40, and reliability Cronbach's alpha for leadership behavior scale: 0.87 (see Appendix 13).

#### **3.3.2 Emotional Intelligence Scale**

The researcher has prepared a questionnaire for the emotional intelligence scale by Alsaeed, 2012, including 58 questions that characterized of karate athletes, and five alternatives next to each questions, scoring was as follows: 5 Always, 4 Often, 3 Sometimes, 2 Rarely, 1 Never, thus the highest value of the scale is 290 and the lowest value of the scale is 58, and reliability Cronbach's alpha for emotional intelligence scale: 0.94 (see Appendix 14).

#### 3.4 Validity of (leadership behavior) and (emotional intelligence) Questionnaire

Leadership behavior scale and emotional intelligence scale is originally in Arabic language and subjects of the study were Kurds so the researcher translated the scale into Kurdish language and English language, to verify the accuracy of the translation, the researcher asked two English language specialists, who are Kurds Huzan Abdullah Yousif and Aveen Sarma, the qualifications are assistant lecturer in Duhok University/ Iraq, Master in English language (see Appendix 16) to translate the scale to English back the Kurdish to ensure the validity of the scale.

#### **3.5 Procedure of the Study**

The questionnaire of the study was distributed "Leadership Behavior" and "Emotional Intelligence", 40 and 58 questions respectively to the players and coaches of clubs in Kurdistan region of the participated advanced category age in the karate championship in Kurdistan region of Iraq for the season 2015- 2016, which consisted of 200 participants 100 players and 100 coaches because the proportion of players is 50% and coaches is 50% of clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq. Eventually, the data were collected from the participants. Finally, 200 questionnaires were collected. Completed questionnaires were reviewed and recorded for analysis according to the assigned codes for anonymity.

#### 3.6 Data Collection

Data were collected by the researcher with the help of the work team on the research sample which consist of 100 coaches, and 100 players, in the days 15- 16/05/2016 (see Appendix 15), in the internal hall of the Chamchamal club in Sulaymaniyah for the advanced category in the karate championship. Finally, 200 questionnaires were collected. Completed questionnaires were reviewed and recorded for analysis according to the assigned codes for anonymity.

#### 3.7 Data Analysis

After collecting the data from each of the participants in the sample, frequency and descriptive statistic by "Likert Method", arithmetic mean and standard deviation in SPSS statistical method were used to find out the results of the present study and Pearson Correlation Coefficient between paired scores.

## CHAPTER 4 RESULTS

### 4.1 Analysis of the questionnaire

The results of the regional answers for coaches and karate athletes are given in Appendix, factor structure of Leadership behavior scale of coaches and Emotional Intelligence scale of karate athletes, analysis of the questionnaire was conducted on 40 items in the leadership behavior of coaches karate clubs in Duhok, Erbil, Kirkuk, Sulaymaniyah and Kurdistan region of Iraq, the results for each region are shown in the Appendix 3, 5, 7, 9, 11 respectively. Also, analysis of the questionnaire was conducted on the 58-item in the Emotional Intelligence of karate athletes karate clubs in Duhok, Erbil, Kirkuk, Sulaymaniyah and Kurdistan region of Iraq, the results for each region are shown in the Appendix 4, 6, 8, 10, 12 below. The mean of the coaches and karate athletes are given also.

# 4.2 The results of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs.

Arithmetic mean and standard deviation was used for calculating the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Duhok clubs can be seen in the table below.

| $\bar{x}$ | S.d  | r              | Р                      |
|-----------|------|----------------|------------------------|
| 2.26      | 0.16 | 0.85           | -                      |
| 2.24      | 0.16 | 0.05           | 0.01*                  |
| -         | 2.26 | x<br>2.26 0.16 | x<br>2.26 0.16<br>0.85 |

**Table 3.** Relationship between the Leadership Behavior of coaches and Emotional

 Intelligence Of karate athletes of Duhok Karate Clubs

\*P < 0.05

As the table 3 shows that; the mean score of coaches  $2.26\pm0.16$  and karate athletes  $2.24\pm0.16$ , and are correlated r=0.85, p<0.05. There are significant correlations between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs, this means that there is a significant correlation between the leadership

behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs. The results showed that there is a significant correlation between coaches and Athlete for Duhok clubs; it was also found that these results are consistent with the concept of hypothesis.

4.3 The results of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Erbil karate clubs.

Arithmetic mean and standard deviation was used to calculate the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Erbil karate clubs and can be seen in the table below.

**Table 4.** Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Erbil karate clubs

| Statistical<br>Monuments | -<br>x | S.d  | r    | Р     |  |
|--------------------------|--------|------|------|-------|--|
| Coaches                  | 2.11   | 0.16 | 0.90 | 0.02* |  |
| Athletes                 | 2.09   | 0.15 |      | 0.02  |  |

\*P < 0.05

As the table 4 shows that the mean score of coaches  $2.11\pm0.16$  and karate athletes  $2.09\pm0.15$ , are correlated r=0.90, p<0.05 and there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Erbil karate clubs, this means there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Erbil karate shows that there is a significant correlation between coaches and Athlete in Erbil clubs; it was also found that these results are consistent with the concept of hypothesis.

# 4.4 The results of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs.

Arithmetic mean and standard deviation was used to calculate the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs can be see in the table below.

| Statistical<br>Monuments | $\overline{x}$ | S.d  | r    | Р     |  |
|--------------------------|----------------|------|------|-------|--|
| Coaches                  | 2.17           | 0.10 | 0.70 | 0.00* |  |
| Athletes                 | 2.18           | 0.09 |      |       |  |
| *P < 0.05                |                |      |      |       |  |

**Table 5.** Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs

As the table 5 shows that, the mean score of coaches  $2.17\pm0.10$  and karate athletes  $2.18\pm0.09$  are correlated r=0.70 p<0.05 and there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs, this means there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs. The researcher interpreted that there is a significant correlation between coaches and athlete in Kirkuk clubs, it was also established that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis.

# 4.5 The results of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs.

Arithmetic mean and standard deviation was used to calculate the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs which can see in the table below.

**Table 6.** Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs.

| Statistical<br>Monuments | x    | S.d  | r    | Р     |
|--------------------------|------|------|------|-------|
| Coaches                  | 2.10 | 0.13 | 0.84 | 0.011 |
| Athletes                 | 2.10 | 0.10 | 0.84 | 0.01* |
| *P < 0.05                |      |      |      |       |

As the table 6 shows that, the mean score of coaches  $2.10\pm0.13$  and karate athletes  $2.10\pm0.10$ , are correlated r=0.84, p<0.05 and there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs, this means there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs. The research interpreted that there is a significant correlation between the the solution of coaches and athlete in Sulaymaniyah clubs; it was also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis.

# 4.6 The results of relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs.

Arithmetic mean and standard deviation was used for calculate the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in karate clubs in the Kurdistan region of Iraq can see in the table below.

| Statistical<br>Monuments | $\bar{x}$ | S.d  | r    | р     |
|--------------------------|-----------|------|------|-------|
| Coaches                  | 2.17      | 0.17 | 0.88 | 0.02* |
| Athletes                 | 2.16      | 0.14 |      | 0.02  |

**Table 7.** Relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kurdistan region

\*P < 0.05

As the table 7 shows that, the mean score of coaches  $2.17\pm0.17$  and karate athletes  $2.16\pm0.14$ , are correlated r=0.88, p<0.05 and there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs, this means there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes at Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs. The research interpreted that there is a significant correlation between coaches and athlete at clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq; it was also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis.

### The research interpretation

The research found that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Duhok karate clubs, it also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis, there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Erbil karate clubs, it was found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis, there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs, it is found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis, there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs, it was found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis, there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs, it was found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis, there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs, research shows that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis.

## CHAPTER 5 DISCUSSION

#### Discussion

This study was aimed at finding the correlation between the leadership behaviors of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate players in clubs teams Kurdistan region of Iraq. The leadership behavior scale and emotional intelligence scale is originally in Arabic language and subjects of the study were Kurds, so the research was translated into Kurdish language and English languages. To verify the accuracy of the translation, the questionnaire was presented to two English language specialists, who are of Kurdish descent (Huzan Abdullah Yousif and Aveen Sarma) who are qualified and proficient in English language, assistant lecturer in Duhok University/ Iraq and Master in English language respectively (see Appendix 16) to translate the scale to English back the Kurdish to ensure the validity of the scale.

The result of the hypothesis in this study is finding the relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Duhok karate clubs. According to the findings of the study, it shows that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Duhok clubs, it also found that the results are consistent with the concept of the hypothesis. The result of the coaches is  $2.26\pm0.16$  and karate athletes is  $2.24\pm0.16$ . Results from Ducket and EcForlan, shows relationship between the leadership behavior, psychological and social skills correlate with the mental processes of sentimental intelligence of players (Ducket & EcForlan, 2003). Research conducted by Gould et al, the results indicated that there is positive influence between the coaching efficiency and leadership styles, and lack of investigation on the relation between emotional intelligence and coaching efficacy, it seems that emotional intelligence and coaching efficacy can be justified via the relation between coaching efficacy and leadership style (Gould et al., 2002).

The result of the hypothesis in this study relates the relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Erbil karate clubs. According to the findings of the study revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Erbil clubs, it was also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis. The result of coaches  $2.11\pm0.16$  and karate athletes  $2.09\pm0.15$ . Such as the study conducted by Huang et al, in mediating role of coaching efficacy in the relation between emotional intelligence and leadership style among 323 US basketball coaches, the results indicated that leadership style can be predicted by emotional intelligence and coaching efficacy played partial mediating role in the relation between emotional intelligence and leadership style (Huang et al., 2013). and the study conducted by Jose on reduction in path coefficient between emotional intelligence and leadership style after inclusion of coaching efficacy was significant, suggesting relative mediating role of this variable and that there is a significant correlation on all of them between coaches and Athlete (Jose, 2013).

The result of the hypothesis in this study is relationship between leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs. According to the finding of the study it was revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence for karate players for Kirkuk clubs. The results in the current study revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Kirkuk clubs, it was also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis. The result of coaches 2.17±0.10 and karate athletes 2.18±0.09. Also a study by Higgs and Aitken, on exploration of the relationship between emotional intelligence and leadership potential, and study aimed to explore the importance of emotional intelligence, the possibility of leadership and the study was conducted in the development of leaders in the New Zealand center and study sample consisted of 40 director working in the public service center and they have to answer to the emotional intelligence scale and the results showed that there is a relationship between emotional intelligence and the possibility of Leadership (Higgs & Aitken, 2003). And a study conducted by Sozyk and Mejirian, the relationship between emotional intelligence and transformational leadership, amounted 63 individuals, and the results showed that emotional intelligence positively associated with transformational leadership, and that this link the degree of self-awareness commander (Sosik & Megerian, 1999).

The result of the hypothesis in this study is relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs. According to the findings of the study revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Sulaymaniyah clubs, it was also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis. The result of coaches 2.10±0.13 and karate athletes 2.10±0.10. reported a study by Palmer and Wales, the study addressed the relationship between emotional intelligence and effective leadership, the sample consisted of 43 participant, the study results showed that there was a significant relationship between the specific component of the transformational leadership and emotional intelligence, and in particular to encourage the creative individual and appreciation, which are linked to a moral capacity the selfmanagement of emotions and the others (Palmer & Walls, 2001). Also a study by Rosete and Ciarrochi, the correlation between emotional intelligence and effective leadership, the results showed that elevated emotional intelligence they have no conflicts, the mood positive activates creativity and contribute positively in solving problems, and that there is a significant correlation between the effective leadership and emotional intelligence (Rosete & Ciarrochi, 2005).

The result of the hypothesis in this study is relationship between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of karate clubs in the Kurdistan region of Iraq. according to the finding of the study revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes for clubs in the Kurdistan region of Iraq, it was also found that this result is consistent with the concept of hypothesis. The result of coaches 2.17±0.17 and karate athletes 2.16±0.14. The study by Okasha, is in the improvement of quality training programs on leadership behavior skills training to avoid mistakes with the leaders, the results showed that a significant correlation between leadership behavior skills of leaders and training programs (Okasha, 2000), also a study of Barling et.al, in the relationship between the leadership and intelligence is compatible with the three dimensions of leadership Manufacturing the impact of role models, encouraging creative, and attention to individual considerations and that Compatible with one dimension of leadership, reciprocity is the conditional penalty and interfere with emotional intelligence,

revealed that there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior and emotional intelligent (Barling et al., 2000).

#### **CHAPTER 6**

### **CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS**

### 6.1 Conclusions

This study measured the correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence for karate players for clubs in the Kurdistan region of Iraq, The total number of all participants of the study was 200. The total for players was 100 and coaches 100, the proportion of players is 50% and coaches 50% in the clubs Kurdistan region of Iraq. All the participants had been selected in the internal hall of the Chamchamal club in Sulaymaniyah for the advanced category in the karate championship. Participants answered the questionnaire of the study; Leadership Behavior scale and Emotional Intelligence scale which was prepared by (Alkawaz, 2010 & Alsaeed, 2012), to collect the data, SPSS statistical methods was used to analyze the descriptive data. The data is given in the appendix related to regional evaluation of the coaches and karate athletes (see Appendix 2-12).

The results of this study as shown in the table 3, the score of coaches' 2.26±0.16 and karate athletes 2.24±0.16 and they are correlated (r=0.85, p<0.05) there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs. The result in the table 4, the score of coaches 2.11±0.16 and karate athletes 2.09±0.15, and are correlated (r=0.90, p<0.05) a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Erbil karate clubs was found. The result in the table 5, the score of coaches 2.17±0.10 and karate athletes 2.18±0.09 and they are correlated (r=0.70 p<0.05) and there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Kirkuk karate clubs. The result in the table 6, the score of coaches 2.10±0.13 and karate athletes 2.10±0.10, and they are correlated (r=0.84, p<0.05) there is a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes in Sulaymaniyah karate clubs. Finally, the result of the table 7, the score of coaches 2.17±0.17 and karate athletes 2.16 $\pm$ 0.14, and they are correlated (r=0.88, p<0.05) a significant correlation between the leadership behavior of coaches and emotional intelligence of karate athletes of clubs in Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs was found.

## **6.2 Recommendations**

Further studies on vision in life is necessary because of the limitations whether it was theoretically or empirically as mentioned above, there is a need for further studies on the elimination of these limitations, we therefore offer our recommendations as follow.

This study focused on the relationship between the leadership behavior and emotional intelligence for coaches and players of karate clubs. We recommend a further procedure to study and investigate the relationship between the leadership behavior and emotional intelligence for coaches and players at others clubs like fighting arts.

#### REFERENCE

- Abdu lamir, A. (1983). Evaluate the behavior of the leader of the junior high school principals from the standpoint of science teachers and leaders, *Baghdad*
- Ahmed, S. A. (1978). Human behavior in organizations, Alexandria.
- Alatrushi, Ch. A. S. (2013). Competitions kata and kumite law of the international union, *hawar press, Dohuk, Iraq, p87.*
- Alkawaz, O. (2010).Leadership behavior for football coaches from the perspective of the players, *Baghdad University*.
- Allawi, H. M. (1998). Encyclopedia of psychological tests for athletes, *book publishing center, Cairo, p19. and individual differences.*
- Asha, B., & Krishnan, J. (2016). A study on emotional intelligence and its impact on turnover intension of employees in hyundai dymos India at Sriperumbudur, Chennai. Zenith International Journal of Business Economics & Management Research.
- Asiegbu, J. E. (2016). The analysis of the Components of emotional intelligence at Workplace: The Case of the Nigerian Telecommunication Industry (Master's thesis, Eastern Mediterranean University (EMU)-Doğu Akdeniz Üniversitesi (DAÜ)).
- Austin, J. (2016). Coaching as a leadership style: The perceived benefits of a leader adopting a coach-approach leadership style.
- Bacon, A. M., & Corr, P. J. (2017). Motivating emotional intelligence: A reinforcement sensitivity theory (RST) perspective. *Motivation and Emotion*, 1-11.
- Barling, J., Weber, T., & Kelloway, E. K. (1996). Effects of transformational leadership training on attitudinal and financial outcomes: A field experiment. *Journal of applied psychology*, 81(6), 827.
- Bar-On Emotional Quotient Inventory (EQ-i) in university students. *Personality* Ulrich,D., Brockbank, W., Yeung, A. K., & Lake, D. G. (1995). Human resource competencie An empirical assessment. *human resource management*.

- Bar-On, R. (2006). The Bar-On model of emotional-social intelligence ESI1. Psicothema, Suplemento.
- Bar-Or, R., & Parker, J. D. A. (2000). Bar-On emotional quotient inventory: Youth version.
- Beenen, G. (2016). Ronald H. Humphrey. Effective Leadership: Theory, Cases and Applications. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage, 2014, 480 pages, Personnel Psychology.
- Bowen, J. (2014). Emotion in the Classroom: An Update, To Improve the Academy.
- Boyatzis, R., Rochford, K., & Cavanagh, K. V. (2017). Emotional intelligence competencies in engineer's effectiveness and engagement. *career development international*.
- Brady, C. G. (2016). The relationship between emotional intelligence and underachievement in adolescence.
- Brandon, D., Cliette, G., Brinson, L., & Robinson, E. (2001). The effects of an anger management Workshop on anger reduction and emotional intelligencein and. african American College student population. *Griot*.
- Burke, S., & Collins, K. M. (2001). Gender differences in leadership styles and management skills. *Women in Management Review*.
- Campbell, J. (2015). Behaviors, attitudes, skills, and knowledge for senior student affairs officers: Perceptions of leadership success, Doctoral dissertation, Bowling Green State University.
- Cassidy, T. (2015). Organisational leadership approaches in sport coaching. *Leadership in Sport*.
- Castaño, N., de Luque, M. F. S., Wernsing, T., Ogliastri, E., Shemueli, R. G., Fuchs, R. M., & Robles-Flores, J. A. (2015). El Jefe: Differences in expected leadership behaviors across Latin American countries. *Journal of World Business*.
- Černe, M., Jaklič, M., & Škerlavaj, M. (2013). Authentic leadership, creativity, and innovation: A multilevel perspective. Leadership.

- Clark, K. D., & Waldron, T. (2016). Predictors of leadership behavior in early career White-Collar Professionals: The Roles of Personal Characteristics and career Context. Journal of Leadership & Organizational Studies.
- Coetzee, M., & Harry, N. (2014). Emotional intelligence as a predictor of employees' career adaptability. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*.
- Cotterill, S. T., & Fransen, K. (2016). Athlete leadership in sport teams: Current understanding and future directions. *International Review of Sport and Exercise Psychology*.
- Daniel, G. (2000). Emotional smartness, council for culture, arts and letters, Kuwait.
- Dawda, D., & Hart, S. D. (2000). Assessing emotional intelligence: Reliability and validity of the Bar-On Emotional Quotient Inventory (EQ-i) in university students. *Personality and individual differences*.
- Delahanty, L., Grant, R. W., Wittenberg, E., Bosch, J. L., Wexler, D. J., Cagliero, E., & Meigs, J. B. (2007). Association of diabetes- related emotional distress with diabetes treatment in primary care patients with Type 2 diabetes. *Diabetic Medicine*, 24(1), 48-54.
- Dikkers, S. M. (2016). Questing as learning: iterative course design using game inspired elements. *on the horizon*.
- Eagly, A. H., & Johannesen, Schmidt, M. C. (2001). The leadership styles of women and men. *Journal of social issues*. Electromyographic researches of gyaku-zukiin karate kumite. In *ISBS-Conference*.
- Elvira, J. (2017). The Role of the organizational behavior in the activity of the organizations in the republic of Moldova. *Performance evaluation*.
- Fakhreldin, H., & Hattab, H. (2015). The effect of emotional intelligence on the new venture creation of necessity and opportunity-driven egyptian entrepreneurs.
- Feher, J., & Reich, M. (2016). Leadership behavior in companies with and without a workplace health management. Polish Journal of management studies.

Fernández-Berrocal, P., & Extremera, N. (2006). Emotional intelligence: A theoretical and

empirical review of its first 15 years of history. Psicothema, Suplemento.

- Fouad, A. (2008). Values and philosophical indications of leadership and coaching in physical education, *Jornal of Erbil University, unpublished study*.
- Gardner, L., & Stough, C. (2002). Examining the relationship between leadership and emotional intelligence in senior level managers. *Leadership & organization development journal*.
- Gebert, D., Heinitz, K., & Buengeler, C. (2016). Leaders charismatic leadership and followers' commitment, The moderating dynamics of value erosion at the societal level. The leadership Quarterly.
- Georgianna, S., Müller, G. F., Schermelleh-Engel, K., & Petersen, B. (2016). Entrepreneurs' Job Satisfaction and its relationship to Super-Leadership and Self-Leadership. Journal of Research in Business, Economics and Management.
- Girma, S. (2016). The relationship between leadership style and employee job satisfaction study of federal and Addis Ababa sport organizational management setting in Ethiopia.
- Goleman, D. (1996). Emotional Intelligence. Why it can matter more than IQ. *Learning*.
- Groves, C. M. (2016). Educational leadership characteristics of rural high school principals and graduation rates.
- Holt, S. S., & Wood, A. (2017). Leadership and emotional intelligence, in *leadership Today*. Springer International Publishing.
- House, R. J., Dorfman, P. W., Javidan, M., Hanges, P. J., & de Luque, M. F. S. (2013). Strategic leadership across cultures: globe study of CEO leadership behavior and effectiveness in 24 countries. Sage Publications.
- Husin, W. N. I. W., Santos, A., Ramos, H. M., & Nordin, M. S. (2013). The place of emotional intelligence in the 'intelligence'taxonomy: crystallized intelligence or fluid intelligence factor?. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*.

- Kamal, D & Dirani, A. (1984). The relationship between the leadership style of the compulsory school administrators and teachers a sense of psychological security, *Jordan*.
- Karimi, L., Leggat, S. G., Donohue, L., Farrell, G., & Couper, G. E. (2014). Emotional rescue: the role of emotional intelligence and emotional labour on well being and job stress among community nurses. *Journal of advanced nursing*.
- Kim, M., Wells, J. E., & Kim, A. C. H. (2016). What are They saying about your head coach?. *Journal of Applied Sport Management*.
- Laschinger, H. K. S., Wong, C. A., & Grau, A. L. (2012). The influence of authentic leadership on newly graduated nurses' experiences of workplace bullying, burnout and retention outcomes: A cross-sectional study, International journal of nursing studies.
- Leban, W., & Zulauf, C. (2004). Linking emotional intelligence abilities and transformational leadership styles. *Leadership & Organization Development Journal*.
- Lopes, P. N., Cote, S., & Salovey, P. (2006). An ability model of emotional intelligence: Implications for assessment and training. *Linking emotional intelligence and performance at work: Current research evidence with individuals and groups.*
- Lopes, P. N., Grewal, D., Kadis, J., Gall, M., & Salovey, P. (2006). Evidence that emotional intelligence is related to job performance and affect and attitudes at work. *Psicothema*, Suplemento.
- Magnusen, M., & Perrewé, P. L. (2016). The role of social effectiveness in leadership: A Critical review and lessons for sport management. sport management education Journal.
- Mansour, F. (1988). Introduction Behavioral Sciences, Arab renaissance, Cairo.
- Martin-Raugh, M. P., Kell, H. J., & Motowidlo, S. J. (2016). Prosocial knowledge mediates effects of agreeableness and emotional intelligence on prosocial behavior. *Personality and Individual Differences*.

Masatoshi, N. (1966). Dynamic Karate, kodansha America, Inc, New York, p234.

- Mayer, J , Salovey , P & , Caruso, A. (2000). Models of emotional intelligence. Handbook
- Meuser, J. D., Gardner, W. L., Dinh, J. E., Hu, J., Liden, R. C., & Lord, R. G. (2016). A network analysis of leadership theory: The infancy of integration. Journal of Management.
- Moradi, E. (2016). A Comparison on emotional intelligence and responsibility of the female Intelligent versus ordinary high school students. *Journal of Entrepreneurship, Business and Economics*.
- Nahavandi, A. (2016). The Art and science of leadership -global edition. Pearson.
- Northouse, P. G. (2012). Leadership: theory and practice. sage.
- Northouse, P. G. (2014). Introduction to leadership: concepts and practice. sage Publications.
- Palmer, B., Walls, M., Burgess, Z., & Stough, C. (2001). Emotional intelligence and effective leadership. *Leadership & Organization Development Journal*, *Proceedings Archive*.
- Pearce, C. L., Wassenaar, C. L., & Manz, C. C. (2014). Is shared leadership the key to responsible leadership?. The academy of management perspectives.
- Pertegal-Felices, M. L., Castejón-Costa, J. L., & Jimeno-Morenilla, A. (2014). Differences between the personal, social and emotional profiles of teaching and computer engineering professionals and students. *Studies in Higher Education*.
- Petrides, K. V. (2016). Emotional intelligence as a personality trait. New Directions in Organizational Psychology and Behavioral Medicine.
- Pool, L. D. (2017). Developing graduate employability: The Career EDGE model and the Importance of Emotional Intelligence. In Graduate Employability in Context.Palgrave Macmillan UK.
- Rbinson, Scott (2000): Emotional intelligence, translate, safa southpaw and aladdin circumferential, Quba House, Alqahirh.

Robbins & Scott (2000). Emotional Intelligence. Translation: Safa southpaw and Aladdin

contour. Cairo: Dar Al Quba for printing, publishing and distribution.

- Robbins ,Stephan p,(1979). Organizational behaviour concepts and controversies ,Prentice Ine.Engle wood cliffs ,Newgersy.
- Robinson, S (2000): Emotional Intelligence, translation I southpaw and aladdin circumferential, Quba Dar, Cairo
- Rode, J. C., Mooney, C. H., Arthaud-Day, M. L., Near, J. P., Baldwin, T. T., Rubin, R. S.,
  & Bommer, W. H. (2007). Emotional intelligence and individual performance: Evidence of direct and moderated effects. *Journal of organizational Behavior*.
- Sachathep, L., & Lynch, R. (2016). A comparative-correlational study of emotional intelligence and musical intelligence among students from year's eight to eleven at modern international school Bangkok, Thailand.
- Salovey, P., & Mayer, J. D. (1990). Emotional intelligence. *Imagination, cognition and personality.*
- Santi, S. (2004). Karate professional guide, Dar al-Faruq, Cairo, Egypt.
- Slah, H. (1972) Entrance in the management and organization learning, *house of culture Cairo*
- Soriano, A. L., & Estrada, W. C. (2016). Administrators' Leadership Behavior, Psychological needs satisfaction and team effectiveness among Ministers. in journal of international scholars' conference.
- Sternberg, I. R. (2000). Models of emotional intelligence. The handbook of intelligence.
- Super, H. (2004). Talk in sports management, Dar weal for publishing and distribution, Jordan.
- Talaat, H. (1988). Social Psychology, Dar of culture and publishing, Cairo, p90.
- Tam, S., & Gray, D. E. (2016). What can we learn from the organizational life cycle theory? A conceptualization for the practice of workplace learning. Journal of Management Research.
- Van Der Zee, K., & Wabeke, R. (2004). Is trait-Emotional Intelligence simply or more

- Vecchio, R. P., Justin, J. E., & Pearce, C. L. (2010). Empowering leadership: an examination of mediating mechanisms within a hierarchical structure. the leadership quarterly.
- Witte, K., Emmermacher, P., Hofmann, M., Schwab, K., & Witte, H. (2008). Critical Review and Lessons for Sport Management. Sport Management Education Journal.

Mayer.J.D & all model of emotional intelligence handbook of intelligens, Cambridge University press.

## University.

Zahari, I. B., & Shurbagi, A. M. A. (2012). The effect of organizational culture and the relationship between transformational leadership and job satisfaction in petroleum sector of Libya. International Business Research.

# Appendix (1)

| karate clubs |               |      |      |      |  |  |  |  |  |
|--------------|---------------|------|------|------|--|--|--|--|--|
| karate clubs | ubs N $ar{x}$ |      | S.d  | p.   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Duhok        | 28            | 2.26 | 0.16 | 0.01 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Erbil 22     |               | 2.11 | 0.16 | 0.02 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Kirkuk       | 17            | 2.17 | 0.10 | 0.00 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Sulaymaniyah | 33            | 2.10 | 0.13 | 0.01 |  |  |  |  |  |
| Total        | 100           | 2.17 | 0.17 | 0.02 |  |  |  |  |  |

Statistics for descriptive of Leadership behavior of coaches at Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs

# Appendix (2)

Statistics for descriptive of Emotional Intelligence of karate athletes at Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs

| karate clubs | Ν   | $\bar{x}$ | S.d  | p.   |
|--------------|-----|-----------|------|------|
| Duhok        | 28  | 2.24      | 0.16 | 0.01 |
| Erbil        | 22  | 2.09      | 0.15 | 0.02 |
| Kirkuk       | 17  | 2.18      | 0.09 | 0.00 |
| Sulaymaniyah | 33  | 2.10      | 0.10 | 0.01 |
| Total        | 100 | 2.16      | 0.14 | 0.02 |

Appendix (3) The leadership behavior of coaches of Duhok karate clubs

| #  | Question  | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
|----|---|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| 1  | I make sure that each player does what he can   | 0      | 3     | 5         | 12     | 8     | 28 | 2.11 | 0.94 | 42.2 |
| 2  | I explain the plan and style of the game for each player                                      | 2      | 4     | 3         | 12     | 7     | 28 | 2.36 | 1.2  | 47.2 |
| 3  | I give attention to correct every players' mistake  | 1      | 3     | 4         | 8      | 12    | 28 | 2.04 | 1.15 | 40.8 |
| 4  | I have to be sure that players understand the role<br>and duties of the coach toward the team | 3      | 1     | 8         | 7      | 9     | 28 | 2.36 | 1.26 | 47.2 |
| 5  | Give individual instructions about karate skills  | 4      | 2     | 5         | 10     | 7     | 28 | 2.5  | 1.32 | 50   |
| 6  | Determine what to be done   | 2      | 2     | 5         | 10     | 9     | 28 | 2.21 | 1.18 | 44.2 |
| 7  | Make it clear for every player his responsibilities   | 2      | 4     | 5         | 10     | 7     | 28 | 2.43 | 1.21 | 48.6 |
| 8  | I expect that every player bear his<br>responsibilities till the end                          | 1      | 4     | 9         | 5      | 9     | 28 | 2.39 | 1.18 | 47.8 |
| 9  | I point out the weak and strength point of each player.                                       | 2      | 1     | 4         | 13     | 8     | 28 | 2.14 | 1.09 | 42.8 |
| 10 | I give limited instruction to each player on what<br>to do in every circumstance              | 7      | 5     | 7         | 6      | 3     | 28 | 3.25 | 1.33 | 65   |
| 11 | I care about cooperation between players  | 3      | 7     | 0         | 9      | 9     | 28 | 2.5  | 1.43 | 50   |
| 12 | I explain how individual effort is important to the team                                      | 0      | 4     | 5         | 10     | 8     | 27 | 2.19 | 1.02 | 43.8 |
| 13 | I determine what is expected and requested from each player                                   | 4      | 3     | 7         | 6      | 8     | 28 | 2.61 | 1.37 | 52.2 |
| 14 | I take players opinions on playing strategy in limited competitive games.                     | 3      | 1     | 6         | 9      | 9     | 28 | 2.29 | 1.25 | 45.8 |
| 15 | I take the group approve about the important ideas before (training , game)                   | 2      | 4     | 5         | 6      | 11    | 28 | 2.29 | 1.31 | 45.8 |
| 16 | I give a chance to the players to be a part of the decision                                   | 4      | 5     | 3         | 8      | 8     | 28 | 2.61 | 1.42 | 52.2 |
| 17 | I encourage the player to rise suggestions on practicing methods                              | 2      | 2     | 1         | 10     | 13    | 28 | 1.93 | 1.19 | 38.6 |
| 18 | I allow the team to determine goal  | 0      | 4     | 5         | 10     | 9     | 28 | 2.14 | 1.03 | 42.8 |
| 19 | I allow the players to implement their way even   | 3      | 3     | 6         | 7      | 9     | 28 | 2.43 | 1.32 | 48.6 |

|    | if it is wrong.   |   |   |   |    |    |    |      |      |      |
|----|---|---|---|---|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 20 | I take players opinion on important subject in training         | 0 | 0 | 4 | 12 | 12 | 28 | 1.71 | 0.7  | 34.2 |
| 21 | I allow the players to work according to their speed            | 2 | 3 | 3 | 11 | 9  | 28 | 2.21 | 1.21 | 44.2 |
| 22 | I allow the players to pick the plan for the game               | 6 | 6 | 7 | 6  | 3  | 28 | 3.21 | 1.29 | 64.2 |
| 23 | I work almost independently from players                        | 0 | 6 | 4 | 8  | 10 | 28 | 2.21 | 1.15 | 44.2 |
| 24 | I do not explain my work or decision                            | 3 | 0 | 7 | 9  | 9  | 28 | 2.25 | 1.21 | 45   |
| 25 | I keep my decision  | 0 | 0 | 1 | 12 | 15 | 28 | 1.5  | 0.57 | 30   |
| 26 | I have the right to make it easy for me                         | 4 | 1 | 1 | 10 | 12 | 28 | 2.11 | 1.37 | 42.2 |
| 27 | I speak in a way which does not give a chance<br>for a question | 1 | 1 | 5 | 10 | 11 | 28 | 1.96 | 1.02 | 39.2 |
| 28 | I help players to solve their personal issues                   | 0 | 3 | 0 | 14 | 11 | 28 | 1.82 | 0.89 | 36.4 |
| 29 | I support the players to solve issues between<br>them           | 0 | 4 | 3 | 12 | 9  | 28 | 2.07 | 1    | 41.4 |
| 30 | I keep the interests of players                                 | 0 | 4 | 1 | 12 | 11 | 28 | 1.93 | 1    | 38.6 |
| 31 | I do a favor to the players                                     | 2 | 4 | 6 | 8  | 8  | 28 | 2.43 | 1.24 | 48.6 |
| 32 | I express my feelings toward the players                        | 6 | 0 | 0 | 12 | 10 | 28 | 2.29 | 1.48 | 45.8 |
| 33 | I encourage the players to trust me                             | 0 | 0 | 6 | 14 | 8  | 28 | 1.93 | 0.7  | 38.6 |
| 34 | I encourage non formal relations between players and me         | 0 | 0 | 1 | 17 | 10 | 28 | 1.68 | 0.54 | 33.6 |
| 35 | I invite the players to my home                                 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 18 | 9  | 28 | 1.71 | 0.52 | 34.2 |
| 36 | I praise the good players in front of other players             | 1 | 3 | 7 | 8  | 9  | 28 | 2.25 | 1.12 | 45   |
| 37 | I tell the player when he does a good job                       | 1 | 1 | 5 | 11 | 10 | 28 | 2    | 1    | 40   |
| 38 | I make sure that a good player receive a reward                 | 2 | 4 | 5 | 8  | 9  | 28 | 2.36 | 1.26 | 47.2 |
| 39 | I appreciate the good player                                    | 3 | 3 | 9 | 8  | 5  | 28 | 2.68 | 1.2  | 53.6 |
| 40 | I give my trust to the trustable player.                        | 8 | 6 | 5 | 7  | 2  | 28 | 3.39 | 1.32 | 67.8 |

| #  | Questions   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
|----|---|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| 1  | My negative feeling helps me in my personal life                                | 2      | 2     | 6         | 10     | 8     | 28 | 2.29 | 1.16 | 45.8 |
| 2  | My true feeling leads me to success   | 2      | 2     | 5         | 9      | 10    | 28 | 2.18 | 1.2  | 43.6 |
| 3  | I can control my negative thinking  | 0      | 2     | 5         | 12     | 9     | 28 | 2    | 0.89 | 40   |
| 4  | After any disturbance I can control my self                                     | 4      | 1     | 4         | 11     | 8     | 28 | 2.36 | 1.32 | 47.2 |
| 5  | I can control my attitude and feelings  | 2      | 3     | 7         | 9      | 7     | 28 | 2.43 | 1.18 | 48.6 |
| 6  | I keep calm at any circumstances  | 3      | 2     | 3         | 11     | 9     | 28 | 2.25 | 1.27 | 45   |
| 7  | I can easily forget my negative feelings  | 4      | 2     | 9         | 6      | 7     | 28 | 2.64 | 1.32 | 52.8 |
| 8  | I can easily convert my feelings to positive                                    | 3      | 2     | 5         | 10     | 8     | 28 | 2.36 | 1.26 | 47.2 |
| 9  | At any danger I can control my feelings   | 0      | 0     | 5         | 14     | 9     | 28 | 1.86 | 0.69 | 37.2 |
| 10 | By my willing I can do what I need emotionally                                  | 1      | 0     | 6         | 9      | 12    | 28 | 1.89 | 0.98 | 37.8 |
| 11 | I can bring to the surface positive reflexes like joyful and fun                | 2      | 0     | 6         | 8      | 12    | 28 | 2    | 1.13 | 40   |
| 12 | During equity I lose time sense when I do duties                                | 3      | 5     | 4         | 11     | 5     | 28 | 2.64 | 1.26 | 52.8 |
| 13 | My feeling helps me to make critical decisions                                  | 1      | 4     | 5         | 9      | 9     | 28 | 2.25 | 1.15 | 45   |
| 14 | I stay optimistic and hopeful when I got defeated                               | 3      | 3     | 3         | 11     | 8     | 28 | 2.36 | 1.29 | 47.2 |
| 15 | I find it difficult to face life struggles and my anxiety and frustrate feeling | 1      | 1     | 4         | 12     | 10    | 28 | 1.96 | 0.98 | 39.2 |
| 16 | I am sensitive toward others needs  | 3      | 3     | 4         | 11     | 7     | 28 | 2.43 | 1.27 | 48.6 |
| 17 | I am a good listener to other people's problems                                 | 3      | 2     | 7         | 7      | 9     | 28 | 2.39 | 1.29 | 47.8 |
| 18 | I understand people's feelings  | 2      | 3     | 5         | 10     | 8     | 28 | 2.32 | 1.2  | 46.4 |
| 19 | I can read people feeling from their faces                                      | 7      | 3     | 5         | 6      | 7     | 28 | 2.89 | 1.52 | 57.8 |
| 20 | I am sensitive toward others emotional needs                                    | 3      | 1     | 6         | 8      | 10    | 28 | 2.25 | 1.27 | 45   |
| 21 | I feel harmonizing with other feelings  | 2      | 2     | 8         | 7      | 9     | 28 | 2.32 | 1.2  | 46.4 |
| 22 | I can easily understand peoples' feelings                                       | 4      | 2     | 6         | 8      | 8     | 28 | 2.5  | 1.35 | 50   |
| 23 | I am capable to feel the emotional site of the others                           | 2      | 2     | 8         | 7      | 9     | 28 | 2.32 | 1.2  | 46.4 |
| 24 | I feel people emotion even if they do not appear it                             | 3      | 2     | 8         | 8      | 7     | 28 | 2.5  | 1.24 | 50   |
| 25 | My strong sense for others feeling, makes me<br>empathy for them                | 4      | 1     | 6         | 9      | 8     | 28 | 2.43 | 1.32 | 48.6 |
| 26 | I can read the group feeling even if they do not reveal it                      | 2      | 2     | 4         | 12     | 8     | 28 | 2.21 | 1.15 | 44.2 |
| 27 | I am capable to reward myself after negative events                             | 2      | 4     | 4         | 10     | 8     | 28 | 2.36 | 1.23 | 47.2 |
| 28 | Even if I do not make a rapid success, I am still patient                       | 1      | 4     | 5         | 11     | 7     | 28 | 2.32 | 1.1  | 46.4 |
| 29 | When I do a boring activity but I still enjoy it.                               | 0      | 3     | 4         | 12     | 9     | 28 | 2.04 | 0.94 | 40.8 |

Appendix (4) The emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Duhok karate clubs

| 30 | With life challenges, I try to be creative  | 2 | 1 | 5 | 9  | 11 | 28 | 2.07 | 1.16 | 41.4 |
|----|---|---|---|---|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 31 | I keep calm when I do a job   | 1 | 2 | 8 | 9  | 8  | 28 | 2.25 | 1.06 | 45   |
| 32 | I can do important job with my all strength   | 5 | 5 | 6 | 8  | 4  | 28 | 2.96 | 1.32 | 59.2 |
| 33 | I can execute duties with a high activity and concentration                               | 1 | 2 | 6 | 8  | 11 | 28 | 2.07 | 1.1  | 41.4 |
| 34 | During pressure I rarely feel tired   | 2 | 2 | 5 | 4  | 15 | 28 | 2    | 1.28 | 40   |
| 35 | I can gain success under pressure   | 4 | 4 | 4 | 9  | 7  | 28 | 2.61 | 1.37 | 52.2 |
| 36 | I can focus on duties , when challenges are present                                       | 0 | 1 | 7 | 11 | 9  | 28 | 2    | 0.85 | 40   |
| 37 | I can focus on what is required from me   | 1 | 3 | 3 | 12 | 9  | 28 | 2.11 | 1.08 | 42.2 |
| 38 | I put my feeling a side when I perform duties   | 5 | 4 | 6 | 7  | 6  | 28 | 2.82 | 1.39 | 56.4 |
| 39 | I can contain the stress feeling that harden my job                                       | 2 | 1 | 7 | 7  | 11 | 28 | 2.14 | 1.19 | 42.8 |
| 40 | I can control the negative and positive emotions to<br>lead my life                       | 4 | 1 | 6 | 9  | 8  | 28 | 2.43 | 1.32 | 48.6 |
| 41 | The negative feeling helps me to change my life   | 2 | 2 | 8 | 7  | 9  | 28 | 2.32 | 1.2  | 46.4 |
| 42 | I can confront my negative feelings when it comes<br>to the decision making related to me | 2 | 3 | 3 | 9  | 11 | 28 | 2.14 | 1.25 | 42.8 |
| 43 | My negative feeling guides me to treat the others   | 0 | 3 | 2 | 12 | 11 | 28 | 1.89 | 0.94 | 37.8 |
| 44 | Always I can sense my sincere feeling   | 2 | 2 | 1 | 7  | 16 | 28 | 1.82 | 1.23 | 36.4 |
| 45 | I can express my feeling  | 3 | 2 | 5 | 8  | 10 | 28 | 2.29 | 1.31 | 45.8 |
| 46 | I am responsible for the feeling of others  | 2 | 2 | 6 | 9  | 9  | 28 | 2.25 | 1.18 | 45   |
| 47 | I don't care the negative emotions  | 4 | 4 | 6 | 8  | 6  | 28 | 2.71 | 1.33 | 54.2 |
| 48 | I understand that I have sensitive feeling  | 3 | 2 | 5 | 10 | 8  | 28 | 2.36 | 1.26 | 47.2 |
| 49 | I am full with bad mood   | 1 | 3 | 8 | 7  | 9  | 28 | 2.29 | 1.13 | 45.8 |
| 50 | I rarely be angry when people harass me with<br>their questions                           | 0 | 3 | 6 | 9  | 10 | 28 | 2.07 | 1    | 41.4 |
| 51 | I am aware of the social signs that others express them                                   | 2 | 5 | 5 | 7  | 9  | 28 | 2.43 | 1.29 | 48.6 |
| 52 | I can easily speak with foreigners  | 3 | 3 | 2 | 9  | 11 | 28 | 2.21 | 1.35 | 44.2 |
| 53 | I can influence others  | 4 | 2 | 6 | 7  | 9  | 28 | 2.46 | 1.38 | 49.2 |
| 54 | I consider myself as trustworthy  | 6 | 3 | 1 | 12 | 6  | 28 | 2.68 | 1.47 | 53.6 |
| 55 | I can give response to others needs and emotions  | 3 | 5 | 6 | 9  | 5  | 28 | 2.71 | 1.25 | 54.2 |
| 56 | I have a big influence on others to determine their goals                                 | 4 | 2 | 6 | 7  | 9  | 28 | 2.46 | 1.38 | 49.2 |
| 57 | People see that I am active towards others feeling  | 2 | 3 | 7 | 7  | 9  | 28 | 2.36 | 1.23 | 47.2 |
| 58 | When I get angry, my appearance cannot be noticed.  | 1 | 1 | 5 | 9  | 12 | 28 | 1.93 | 1.03 | 38.6 |

Sometimes Always Rarely Nevei Often  $\bar{x}$ # Question Ν S.d % I make sure that each player does what he can 3 1 2 1 9 7 22 2.18 1.19 43.6 I explain the plan and style of the game for 2 each player 2 6 9 22 2.14 1.25 42.8 1 4 I give attention to correct every players' 3 mistake 3 2 10 22 2.23 44.6 1 6 1.13 I have to be sure that players understand the role and duties of the coach toward the team 4 4 1 3 6 8 22 2.41 1.47 48.2 Give individual instructions about karate 7 7 5 skills 2 2 22 2.5 1.47 50 4 Determine what to be done 6 2 2 4 5 9 22 2.23 1.31 44.6 Make it clear for every player his 7 responsibilities 3 0 3 9 7 22 2.23 1.28 44.6 I expect that every player bear his responsibilities till the end 34.6 8 1 0 3 6 12 22 1.73 1.01 I point out the weak and strength point of 9 each player. 2 1 3 8 8 22 2.14 1.22 42.8 I give limited instruction to each player on 10 what to do in every circumstance 5 2 2 6 7 22 2.64 1.55 52.8 I care about cooperation between players 11 3 0 0 10 9 22 2 1.28 40 I explain how individual effort is important to 12 the team 0 4 0 10 8 22 2 1.04 40 I determine what is expected and requested from each player 4 3 2 5 8 13 22 2.55 1.53 51 I take players opinions on playing strategy in limited competitive games. 14 9 6 2.36 47.2 3 1 3 22 1.3 I take the group approve about the important 2.09 41.8 15 ideas before (training, game) 2 2 2 6 10 22 1.31 I give a chance to the players to be a part of the decision 3 3 8 43.6 0 8 22 2.18 1.3 16 I encourage the player to rise suggestions on practicing methods 17 2 2 1 4 13 22 1.91 1.35 38.2

**Appendix (5)** The leadership behavior of coaches of Erbil karate clubs

| 18 | I allow the team to determine goal                                 | 0 | 4 | 2 | 7  | 9  | 22 | 2.05 | 1.11 | 41   |
|----|--|---|---|---|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 19 | I allow the players to implement their way<br>even if it is wrong. | 3 | 3 | 3 | 8  | 5  | 22 | 2.59 | 1.34 | 51.8 |
| 20 | I take players opinion on important subject in training            | 2 | 1 | 4 | 6  | 9  | 22 | 2.14 | 1.25 | 42.8 |
| 21 | I allow the players to work according to their speed               | 2 | 3 | 3 | 5  | 9  | 22 | 2.27 | 1.35 | 45.4 |
| 22 | I allow the players to pick the plan for the game                  | 3 | 2 | 2 | 9  | 6  | 22 | 2.41 | 1.34 | 48.2 |
| 23 | I work almost independently from players                           | 0 | 3 | 3 | 8  | 8  | 22 | 2.05 | 1.02 | 41   |
| 24 | I do not explain my work or decision                               | 3 | 0 | 4 | 8  | 7  | 22 | 2.27 | 1.29 | 45.4 |
| 25 | I keep my decision   | 0 | 0 | 4 | 8  | 10 | 22 | 1.73 | 0.75 | 34.6 |
| 26 | I have the right to make it easy for me                            | 1 | 1 | 2 | 6  | 12 | 22 | 1.77 | 1.08 | 35.4 |
| 27 | I speak in a way which does not give a chance for a question       | 1 | 1 | 3 | 10 | 7  | 22 | 2.05 | 1.02 | 41   |
| 28 | I help players to solve their personal issues                      | 0 | 3 | 0 | 8  | 11 | 22 | 1.77 | 1    | 35.4 |
| 29 | I support the players to solve issues between them                 | 2 | 3 | 2 | 9  | 6  | 22 | 2.36 | 1.26 | 47.2 |
| 30 | I keep the interests of players                                    | 2 | 1 | 2 | 9  | 8  | 22 | 2.09 | 1.2  | 41.8 |
| 31 | I do a favor to the players  | 2 | 2 | 2 | 8  | 8  | 22 | 2.18 | 1.27 | 43.6 |
| 32 | I express my feelings toward the players                           | 2 | 0 | 1 | 10 | 9  | 22 | 1.91 | 1.12 | 38.2 |
| 33 | I encourage the players to trust me                                | 0 | 0 | 0 | 14 | 8  | 22 | 1.64 | 0.48 | 32.8 |
| 34 | I encourage non formal relations between players and me            | 0 | 0 | 1 | 12 | 9  | 22 | 1.64 | 0.57 | 32.8 |
| 35 | I invite the players to my home                                    | 0 | 0 | 1 | 5  | 16 | 22 | 1.32 | 0.55 | 26.4 |
| 36 | I praise the good players in front of other players                | 1 | 0 | 3 | 9  | 9  | 22 | 1.86 | 0.97 | 37.2 |
| 37 | I tell the player when he does a good job                          | 1 | 1 | 0 | 11 | 9  | 22 | 1.82 | 0.98 | 36.4 |
| 38 | I make sure that a good player receive a reward                    | 2 | 1 | 3 | 7  | 9  | 22 | 2.09 | 1.24 | 41.8 |
| 39 | I appreciate the good player                                       | 3 | 3 | 2 | 9  | 5  | 22 | 2.55 | 1.34 | 51   |
| 40 | I give my trust to the trustable player.                           | 0 | 6 | 2 | 6  | 8  | 22 | 2.27 | 1.21 | 45.4 |

| #  | Questions  | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
|----|--|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| 1  | My negative feeling helps me in my personal life                                   | 2      | 2     | 4         | 9      | 5     | 22 | 2.41 | 1.19 | 48.2 |
| 2  | My true feeling leads me to success  | 2      | 2     | 3         | 6      | 9     | 22 | 2.18 | 1.3  | 43.6 |
| 3  | I can control my negative thinking   | 0      | 2     | 5         | 8      | 7     | 22 | 2.09 | 0.95 | 41.8 |
| 4  | After any disturbance I can control my self  | 2      | 1     | 4         | 7      | 8     | 22 | 2.18 | 1.23 | 43.6 |
| 5  | I can control my attitude and feelings   | 2      | 3     | 4         | 7      | 6     | 22 | 2.45 | 1.27 | 49   |
| 6  | I keep calm at any circumstances   | 3      | 1     | 3         | 6      | 9     | 22 | 2.23 | 1.38 | 44.6 |
| 7  | I can easily forget my negative feelings   | 2      | 2     | 4         | 6      | 8     | 22 | 2.27 | 1.29 | 45.4 |
| 8  | I can easily convert my feelings to positive                                       | 3      | 2     | 3         | 6      | 8     | 22 | 2.36 | 1.4  | 47.2 |
| 9  | At any danger I can control my feelings  | 0      | 0     | 4         | 7      | 11    | 22 | 1.68 | 0.76 | 33.6 |
| 10 | By my willing I can do what I need emotionally                                     | 2      | 0     | 2         | 9      | 9     | 22 | 1.95 | 1.15 | 39   |
| 11 | I can bring to the surface positive reflexes like joyful and fun                   | 4      | 0     | 4         | 8      | 6     | 22 | 2.45 | 1.37 | 49   |
| 12 | During equity I lose time sense when I do duties                                   | 3      | 2     | 4         | 8      | 5     | 22 | 2.55 | 1.3  | 51   |
| 13 | My feeling helps me to make critical decisions                                     | 1      | 4     | 5         | 5      | 7     | 22 | 2.41 | 1.23 | 48.2 |
| 14 | I stay optimistic and hopeful when I got defeated                                  | 3      | 2     | 3         | 6      | 8     | 22 | 2.36 | 1.4  | 47.2 |
| 15 | I find it difficult to face life struggles and my<br>anxiety and frustrate feeling | 2      | 1     | 4         | 7      | 8     | 22 | 2.18 | 1.23 | 43.6 |
| 16 | I am sensitive toward others needs   | 1      | 3     | 4         | 7      | 7     | 22 | 2.27 | 1.17 | 45.4 |
| 17 | I am a good listener to other people's problems                                    | 3      | 2     | 3         | 5      | 9     | 22 | 2.32 | 1.43 | 46.4 |
| 18 | I understand people's feelings   | 2      | 3     | 4         | 5      | 8     | 22 | 2.36 | 1.33 | 47.2 |
| 19 | I can read people feeling from their faces   | 2      | 3     | 5         | 5      | 7     | 22 | 2.45 | 1.3  | 49   |
| 20 | I am sensitive toward others emotional needs                                       | 3      | 1     | 6         | 7      | 5     | 22 | 2.55 | 1.27 | 51   |
| 21 | I feel harmonizing with other feelings   | 2      | 2     | 4         | 5      | 9     | 22 | 2.23 | 1.31 | 44.6 |
| 22 | I can easily understand peoples' feelings  | 1      | 2     | 6         | 6      | 7     | 22 | 2.27 | 1.14 | 45.4 |
| 23 | I am capable to feel the emotional site of the others                              | 2      | 2     | 4         | 7      | 7     | 22 | 2.32 | 1.26 | 46.4 |
| 24 | I feel people emotion even if they do not appear it                                | 3      | 2     | 3         | 7      | 7     | 22 | 2.41 | 1.37 | 48.2 |
| 25 | My strong sense for others feeling, makes me<br>empathy for them                   | 4      | 1     | 5         | 4      | 8     | 22 | 2.5  | 1.47 | 50   |
| 26 | I can read the group feeling even if they do not reveal it                         | 2      | 2     | 4         | 9      | 5     | 22 | 2.41 | 1.19 | 48.2 |
| 27 | I am capable to reward myself after negative events                                | 2      | 3     | 4         | 8      | 5     | 22 | 2.5  | 1.23 | 50   |
| 28 | Even if I do not make a rapid success, I am still patient                          | 1      | 4     | 5         | 7      | 5     | 22 | 2.5  | 1.16 | 50   |
| 29 | When I do a boring activity but I still enjoy it.                                  | 0      | 3     | 3         | 9      | 7     | 22 | 2.09 | 1    | 41.8 |

Appendix (6) The emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Erbil karate clubs

| 30 | With life challenges, I try to be creative  | 2 | 4 | 2 | 6  | 8  | 22 | 2.36 | 1.37 | 47.2 |
|----|---|---|---|---|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 31 | I keep calm when I do a job   | 1 | 1 | 8 | 5  | 7  | 22 | 2.27 | 1.09 | 45.4 |
| 32 | I can do important job with my all strength   | 5 | 5 | 3 | 6  | 3  | 22 | 3.14 | 1.39 | 62.8 |
| 33 | I can execute duties with a high activity and concentration                               | 1 | 2 | 3 | 8  | 8  | 22 | 2.09 | 1.12 | 41.8 |
| 34 | During pressure I rarely feel tired   | 2 | 2 | 5 | 4  | 9  | 22 | 2.27 | 1.32 | 45.4 |
| 35 | I can gain success under pressure   | 1 | 2 | 4 | 9  | 6  | 22 | 2.23 | 1.08 | 44.6 |
| 36 | I can focus on duties , when challenges are present                                       | 0 | 1 | 6 | 6  | 9  | 22 | 1.95 | 0.93 | 39   |
| 37 | I can focus on what is required from me   | 1 | 3 | 3 | 6  | 9  | 22 | 2.14 | 1.22 | 42.8 |
| 38 | I put my feeling a side when I perform duties   | 2 | 4 | 6 | 4  | 6  | 22 | 2.64 | 1.3  | 52.8 |
| 39 | I can contain the stress feeling that harden my job                                       | 2 | 1 | 4 | 7  | 8  | 22 | 2.18 | 1.23 | 43.6 |
| 40 | I can control the negative and positive emotions to<br>lead my life                       | 4 | 1 | 3 | 6  | 8  | 22 | 2.41 | 1.47 | 48.2 |
| 41 | The negative feeling helps me to change my life   | 2 | 2 | 3 | 6  | 9  | 22 | 2.18 | 1.3  | 43.6 |
| 42 | I can confront my negative feelings when it comes<br>to the decision making related to me | 2 | 1 | 3 | 9  | 7  | 22 | 2.18 | 1.19 | 43.6 |
| 43 | My negative feeling guides me to treat the others   | 0 | 2 | 2 | 11 | 7  | 22 | 1.95 | 0.88 | 39   |
| 44 | Always I can sense my sincere feeling   | 2 | 2 | 2 | 7  | 9  | 22 | 2.14 | 1.29 | 42.8 |
| 45 | I can express my feeling  | 1 | 2 | 3 | 8  | 8  | 22 | 2.09 | 1.12 | 41.8 |
| 46 | I am responsible for the feeling of others  | 2 | 2 | 3 | 8  | 7  | 22 | 2.27 | 1.25 | 45.4 |
| 47 | I don't care the negative emotions  | 4 | 5 | 3 | 4  | 6  | 22 | 2.86 | 1.49 | 57.2 |
| 48 | I understand that I have sensitive feeling  | 1 | 2 | 4 | 9  | 6  | 22 | 2.23 | 1.08 | 44.6 |
| 49 | I am full with bad mood   | 1 | 3 | 4 | 4  | 10 | 22 | 2.14 | 1.25 | 42.8 |
| 50 | I rarely be angry when people harass me with<br>their questions                           | 0 | 4 | 6 | 5  | 7  | 22 | 2.32 | 1.1  | 46.4 |
| 51 | I am aware of the social signs that others express them                                   | 2 | 5 | 5 | 3  | 7  | 22 | 2.64 | 1.37 | 52.8 |
| 52 | I can easily speak with foreigners  | 4 | 0 | 2 | 9  | 7  | 22 | 2.32 | 1.39 | 46.4 |
| 53 | I can influence others  | 4 | 2 | 2 | 5  | 9  | 22 | 2.41 | 1.53 | 48.2 |
| 54 | I consider myself as trustworthy  | 6 | 3 | 1 | 7  | 5  | 22 | 2.91 | 1.56 | 58.2 |
| 55 | I can give response to others needs and emotions  | 3 | 4 | 6 | 4  | 5  | 22 | 2.82 | 1.34 | 56.4 |
| 56 | I have a big influence on others to determine their goals                                 | 2 | 2 | 2 | 7  | 9  | 22 | 2.14 | 1.29 | 42.8 |
| 57 | People see that I am active towards others feeling  | 2 | 3 | 6 | 2  | 9  | 22 | 2.41 | 1.37 | 48.2 |
| 58 | When I get angry, my appearance cannot be noticed.  | 1 | 1 | 5 | 9  | 6  | 22 | 2.18 | 1.03 | 43.6 |

|    |  | 1      | 1     |           | 1      | 1     |    |      | 1    |      |
|----|--|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| #  | Question   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
| 1  | I make sure that each player does what he can  | 0      | 1     | 2         | 6      | 8     | 17 | 1.76 | 0.88 | 35.2 |
| 2  | I explain the plan and style of the game for each player                                   | 1      | 1     | 1         | 9      | 5     | 17 | 2.06 | 1.06 | 41.2 |
| 3  | I give attention to correct every players' mistake   | 1      | 0     | 2         | 8      | 6     | 17 | 1.94 | 1    | 38.8 |
| 4  | I have to be sure that players understand the role and duties of the coach toward the team | 4      | 1     | 1         | 6      | 5     | 17 | 2.59 | 1.54 | 51.8 |
| 5  | Give individual instructions about karate skills   | 2      | 1     | 2         | 7      | 5     | 17 | 2.29 | 1.27 | 45.8 |
| 6  | Determine what to be done  | 2      | 2     | 0         | 5      | 8     | 17 | 2.12 | 1.41 | 42.4 |
| 7  | Make it clear for every player his responsibilities  | 3      | 0     | 2         | 5      | 7     | 17 | 2.24 | 1.44 | 44.8 |
| 8  | I expect that every player bear his responsibilities till the end                          | 1      | 0     | 3         | 6      | 7     | 17 | 1.94 | 1.06 | 38.8 |
| 9  | I point out the weak and strength point of each player.                                    | 2      | 1     | 4         | 5      | 5     | 17 | 2.41 | 1.29 | 48.2 |
| 10 | I give limited instruction to each player on<br>what to do in every circumstance           | 0      | 2     | 2         | 6      | 7     | 17 | 1.94 | 1    | 38.8 |
| 11 | I care about cooperation between players   | 1      | 0     | 2         | 6      | 8     | 17 | 1.82 | 1.04 | 36.4 |
| 12 | I explain how individual effort is important to the team                                   | 0      | 1     | 0         | 8      | 8     | 17 | 1.65 | 0.76 | 33   |
| 13 | I determine what is expected and requested from each player                                | 1      | 3     | 2         | 5      | 6     | 17 | 2.29 | 1.27 | 45.8 |
| 14 | I take players opinions on playing strategy in limited competitive games.                  | 3      | 1     | 3         | 4      | 6     | 17 | 2.47 | 1.46 | 49.4 |
| 15 | I take the group approve about the important ideas before (training, game)                 | 0      | 1     | 2         | 6      | 8     | 17 | 1.76 | 0.88 | 35.2 |
| 16 | I give a chance to the players to be a part of the decision                                | 0      | 0     | 3         | 6      | 8     | 17 | 1.71 | 0.75 | 34.2 |
| 17 | I encourage the player to rise suggestions on practicing methods                           | 2      | 2     | 1         | 5      | 7     | 17 | 2.24 | 1.39 | 44.8 |

Appendix (7) The leadership behavior of coaches of Kirkuk karate clubs

| 18 | I allow the team to determine goal                                 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 5  | 8  | 17 | 1.94 | 1.16 | 38.8 |
|----|--|---|---|---|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 19 | I allow the players to implement their way<br>even if it is wrong. | 3 | 3 | 1 | 5  | 5  | 17 | 2.65 | 1.49 | 53   |
| 20 | I take players opinion on important subject in training            | 2 | 1 | 3 | 6  | 5  | 17 | 2.35 | 1.28 | 47   |
| 21 | I allow the players to work according to their speed               | 2 | 1 | 1 | 5  | 8  | 17 | 2.06 | 1.35 | 41.2 |
| 22 | I allow the players to pick the plan for the game                  | 0 | 2 | 2 | 7  | 6  | 17 | 2    | 0.97 | 40   |
| 23 | I work almost independently from players                           | 0 | 2 | 1 | 6  | 8  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.98 | 36.4 |
| 24 | I do not explain my work or decision                               | 3 | 0 | 0 | 7  | 7  | 17 | 2.12 | 1.41 | 42.4 |
| 25 | I keep my decision   | 1 | 0 | 2 | 7  | 7  | 17 | 1.88 | 1.02 | 37.6 |
| 26 | I have the right to make it easy for me                            | 1 | 0 | 1 | 6  | 9  | 17 | 1.71 | 1.02 | 34.2 |
| 27 | I speak in a way which does not give a chance for a question       | 1 | 1 | 1 | 7  | 7  | 17 | 1.94 | 1.11 | 38.8 |
| 28 | I help players to solve their personal issues                      | 0 | 3 | 0 | 8  | 6  | 17 | 2    | 1.03 | 40   |
| 29 | I support the players to solve issues between them                 | 1 | 1 | 2 | 9  | 4  | 17 | 2.18 | 1.04 | 43.6 |
| 30 | I keep the interests of players                                    | 0 | 1 | 1 | 7  | 8  | 17 | 1.71 | 0.82 | 34.2 |
| 31 | I do a favor to the players  | 1 | 0 | 1 | 8  | 7  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.98 | 36.4 |
| 32 | I express my feelings toward the players                           | 2 | 0 | 1 | 6  | 8  | 17 | 1.94 | 1.26 | 38.8 |
| 33 | I encourage the players to trust me                                | 0 | 0 | 0 | 10 | 7  | 17 | 1.59 | 0.49 | 31.8 |
| 34 | I encourage non formal relations between players and me            | 0 | 0 | 1 | 9  | 7  | 17 | 1.65 | 0.59 | 33   |
| 35 | I invite the players to my home                                    | 0 | 0 | 1 | 6  | 10 | 17 | 1.47 | 0.61 | 29.4 |
| 36 | I praise the good players in front of other players                | 1 | 1 | 1 | 5  | 9  | 17 | 1.82 | 1.15 | 36.4 |
| 37 | I tell the player when he does a good job                          | 1 | 1 | 3 | 7  | 5  | 17 | 2.18 | 1.1  | 43.6 |
| 38 | I make sure that a good player receive a reward                    | 2 | 1 | 3 | 7  | 4  | 17 | 2.41 | 1.24 | 48.2 |
| 39 | I appreciate the good player                                       | 1 | 2 | 2 | 7  | 5  | 17 | 2.24 | 1.16 | 44.8 |
| 40 | I give my trust to the trustable player.                           | 0 | 2 | 1 | 6  | 8  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.98 | 36.4 |

| #  | Questions  | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
|----|--|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| 1  | My negative feeling helps me in my personal life                                   | 0      | 0     | 6         | 3      | 8     | 17 | 1.88 | 0.9  | 37.6 |
| 2  | My true feeling leads me to success  | 1      | 0     | 4         | 6      | 6     | 17 | 2.06 | 1.06 | 41.2 |
| 3  | I can control my negative thinking   | 0      | 1     | 2         | 7      | 7     | 17 | 1.82 | 0.86 | 36.4 |
| 4  | After any disturbance I can control my self  | 0      | 1     | 3         | 5      | 8     | 17 | 1.82 | 0.92 | 36.4 |
| 5  | I can control my attitude and feelings   | 0      | 0     | 4         | 7      | 6     | 17 | 1.88 | 0.76 | 37.6 |
| 6  | I keep calm at any circumstances   | 1      | 0     | 3         | 5      | 8     | 17 | 1.88 | 1.08 | 37.6 |
| 7  | I can easily forget my negative feelings   | 0      | 0     | 4         | 6      | 7     | 17 | 1.82 | 0.78 | 36.4 |
| 8  | I can easily convert my feelings to positive                                       | 1      | 0     | 3         | 5      | 8     | 17 | 1.88 | 1.08 | 37.6 |
| 9  | At any danger I can control my feelings  | 0      | 0     | 2         | 7      | 8     | 17 | 1.65 | 0.68 | 33   |
| 10 | By my willing I can do what I need emotionally                                     | 1      | 0     | 2         | 5      | 9     | 17 | 1.76 | 1.06 | 35.2 |
| 11 | I can bring to the surface positive reflexes like joyful and fun                   | 1      | 0     | 1         | 9      | 6     | 17 | 1.88 | 0.96 | 37.6 |
| 12 | During equity I lose time sense when I do duties                                   | 0      | 2     | 2         | 8      | 5     | 17 | 2.06 | 0.94 | 41.2 |
| 13 | My feeling helps me to make critical decisions                                     | 1      | 0     | 4         | 5      | 7     | 17 | 2    | 1.08 | 40   |
| 14 | I stay optimistic and hopeful when I got defeated                                  | 0      | 2     | 0         | 6      | 9     | 17 | 1.71 | 0.96 | 34.2 |
| 15 | I find it difficult to face life struggles and my<br>anxiety and frustrate feeling | 0      | 0     | 2         | 7      | 8     | 17 | 1.65 | 0.68 | 33   |
| 16 | I am sensitive toward others needs   | 1      | 0     | 1         | 8      | 7     | 17 | 1.82 | 0.98 | 36.4 |
| 17 | I am a good listener to other people's problems                                    | 0      | 2     | 1         | 5      | 9     | 17 | 1.76 | 1    | 35.2 |
| 18 | I understand people's feelings   | 1      | 1     | 2         | 5      | 8     | 17 | 1.94 | 1.16 | 38.8 |
| 19 | I can read people feeling from their faces   | 2      | 1     | 2         | 5      | 7     | 17 | 2.18 | 1.34 | 43.6 |
| 20 | I am sensitive toward others emotional needs                                       | 3      | 1     | 1         | 7      | 5     | 17 | 2.41 | 1.42 | 48.2 |
| 21 | I feel harmonizing with other feelings   | 1      | 0     | 2         | 5      | 9     | 17 | 1.76 | 1.06 | 35.2 |
| 22 | I can easily understand peoples' feelings  | 1      | 3     | 0         | 6      | 7     | 17 | 2.12 | 1.28 | 42.4 |
| 23 | I am capable to feel the emotional site of the others                              | 1      | 0     | 1         | 7      | 8     | 17 | 1.76 | 1    | 35.2 |
| 24 | I feel people emotion even if they do not appear it                                | 0      | 2     | 1         | 7      | 7     | 17 | 1.88 | 0.96 | 37.6 |
| 25 | My strong sense for others feeling, makes me<br>empathy for them                   | 0      | 1     | 4         | 4      | 8     | 17 | 1.88 | 0.96 | 37.6 |
| 26 | I can read the group feeling even if they do not reveal it                         | 2      | 2     | 0         | 9      | 4     | 17 | 2.35 | 1.28 | 47   |
| 27 | I am capable to reward myself after negative events                                | 1      | 0     | 3         | 8      | 5     | 17 | 2.06 | 1    | 41.2 |
| 28 | Even if I do not make a rapid success, I am still patient                          | 1      | 0     | 5         | 6      | 5     | 17 | 2.18 | 1.04 | 43.6 |
| 29 | When I do a boring activity but I still enjoy it.                                  | 0      | 1     | 2         | 7      | 7     | 17 | 1.82 | 0.86 | 36.4 |

Appendix (8) The emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Kirkuk karate clubs

| 30 | With life challenges, I try to be creative  | 2 | 0 | 1 | 6  | 8  | 17 | 1.94 | 1.26 | 38.8 |
|----|---|---|---|---|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 31 | I keep calm when I do a job   | 1 | 2 | 0 | 7  | 7  | 17 | 2    | 1.19 | 40   |
| 32 | I can do important job with my all strength   | 5 | 0 | 3 | 6  | 3  | 17 | 2.88 | 1.49 | 57.6 |
| 33 | I can execute duties with a high activity and concentration                               | 1 | 0 | 0 | 8  | 8  | 17 | 1.71 | 0.96 | 34.2 |
| 34 | During pressure I rarely feel tired   | 2 | 0 | 0 | 6  | 9  | 17 | 1.82 | 1.25 | 36.4 |
| 35 | I can gain success under pressure   | 1 | 0 | 1 | 9  | 6  | 17 | 1.88 | 0.96 | 37.6 |
| 36 | I can focus on duties , when challenges are present                                       | 0 | 1 | 2 | 5  | 9  | 17 | 1.71 | 0.89 | 34.2 |
| 37 | I can focus on what is required from me   | 1 | 0 | 3 | 4  | 9  | 17 | 1.82 | 1.1  | 36.4 |
| 38 | I put my feeling a side when I perform duties   | 6 | 2 | 0 | 4  | 5  | 17 | 3    | 1.71 | 60   |
| 39 | I can contain the stress feeling that harden my job                                       | 1 | 1 | 0 | 7  | 8  | 17 | 1.82 | 1.1  | 36.4 |
| 40 | I can control the negative and positive emotions to<br>lead my life                       | 0 | 1 | 3 | 5  | 8  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.92 | 36.4 |
| 41 | The negative feeling helps me to change my life   | 2 | 0 | 3 | 6  | 6  | 17 | 2.18 | 1.25 | 43.6 |
| 42 | I can confront my negative feelings when it comes<br>to the decision making related to me | 0 | 1 | 0 | 9  | 7  | 17 | 1.71 | 0.75 | 34.2 |
| 43 | My negative feeling guides me to treat the others   | 0 | 2 | 0 | 8  | 7  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.92 | 36.4 |
| 44 | Always I can sense my sincere feeling   | 2 | 1 | 2 | 3  | 9  | 17 | 2.06 | 1.39 | 41.2 |
| 45 | I can express my feeling  | 1 | 0 | 0 | 8  | 8  | 17 | 1.71 | 0.96 | 34.2 |
| 46 | I am responsible for the feeling of others  | 0 | 2 | 0 | 8  | 7  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.92 | 36.4 |
| 47 | I don't care the negative emotions  | 4 | 0 | 3 | 4  | 6  | 17 | 2.53 | 1.54 | 50.6 |
| 48 | I understand that I have sensitive feeling  | 1 | 0 | 0 | 10 | 6  | 17 | 1.82 | 0.92 | 36.4 |
| 49 | I am full with bad mood   | 0 | 3 | 0 | 4  | 10 | 17 | 1.76 | 1.11 | 35.2 |
| 50 | I rarely be angry when people harass me with<br>their questions                           | 0 | 1 | 3 | 6  | 7  | 17 | 1.88 | 0.9  | 37.6 |
| 51 | I am aware of the social signs that others express them                                   | 2 | 0 | 0 | 9  | 6  | 17 | 2    | 1.19 | 40   |
| 52 | I can easily speak with foreigners  | 0 | 0 | 1 | 9  | 7  | 17 | 1.65 | 0.59 | 33   |
| 53 | I can influence others  | 4 | 0 | 2 | 2  | 9  | 17 | 2.29 | 1.64 | 45.8 |
| 54 | I consider myself as trustworthy  | 1 | 0 | 1 | 10 | 5  | 17 | 1.94 | 0.94 | 38.8 |
| 55 | I can give response to others needs and emotions  | 3 | 4 | 0 | 5  | 5  | 17 | 2.71 | 1.52 | 54.2 |
| 56 | I have a big influence on others to determine their goals                                 | 0 | 0 | 1 | 7  | 9  | 17 | 1.53 | 0.61 | 30.6 |
| 57 | People see that I am active towards others feeling  | 2 | 3 | 0 | 3  | 9  | 17 | 2.18 | 1.5  | 43.6 |
| 58 | When I get angry, my appearance cannot be noticed.  | 1 | 1 | 5 | 4  | 6  | 17 | 2.24 | 1.16 | 44.8 |

|    |  |        |       | r —       | 1      |       |    |      |      |      |
|----|--|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| #  | Question   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
| 1  | I make sure that each player does what he can  | 1      | 2     | 5         | 11     | 14    | 33 | 1.94 | 1.04 | 38.8 |
| 2  | I explain the plan and style of the game for<br>each player                                | 2      | 2     | 6         | 10     | 13    | 33 | 2.09 | 1.16 | 41.8 |
| 3  | I give attention to correct every players' mistake   | 0      | 2     | 5         | 14     | 12    | 33 | 1.91 | 0.87 | 38.2 |
| 4  | I have to be sure that players understand the role and duties of the coach toward the team | 4      | 6     | 4         | 8      | 11    | 33 | 2.52 | 1.42 | 50.4 |
| 5  | Give individual instructions about karate skills   | 2      | 2     | 7         | 10     | 12    | 33 | 2.15 | 1.16 | 43   |
| 6  | Determine what to be done  | 3      | 3     | 5         | 13     | 9     | 33 | 2.33 | 1.22 | 46.6 |
| 7  | Make it clear for every player his responsibilities  | 4      | 2     | 8         | 7      | 12    | 33 | 2.36 | 1.34 | 47.2 |
| 8  | I expect that every player bear his<br>responsibilities till the end                       | 3      | 6     | 5         | 11     | 8     | 33 | 2.55 | 1.28 | 51   |
| 9  | I point out the weak and strength point of each player.                                    | 0      | 0     | 5         | 16     | 12    | 33 | 1.79 | 0.69 | 35.8 |
| 10 | I give limited instruction to each player on<br>what to do in every circumstance           | 1      | 1     | 6         | 13     | 12    | 33 | 1.97 | 0.97 | 39.4 |
| 11 | I care about cooperation between players   | 2      | 0     | 6         | 10     | 15    | 33 | 1.91 | 1.08 | 38.2 |
| 12 | I explain how individual effort is important to the team                                   | 3      | 5     | 4         | 16     | 5     | 33 | 2.55 | 1.18 | 51   |
| 13 | I determine what is expected and requested from each player                                | 1      | 5     | 5         | 9      | 13    | 33 | 2.15 | 1.18 | 43   |
| 14 | I take players opinions on playing strategy in limited competitive games.                  | 3      | 3     | 6         | 13     | 8     | 33 | 2.39 | 1.2  | 47.8 |
| 15 | I take the group approve about the important ideas before (training, game)                 | 1      | 1     | 6         | 12     | 13    | 33 | 1.94 | 0.98 | 38.8 |
| 16 | I give a chance to the players to be a part of the decision                                | 2      | 1     | 4         | 11     | 15    | 33 | 1.91 | 1.11 | 38.2 |
| 17 | I encourage the player to rise suggestions on practicing methods                           | 3      | 2     | 7         | 12     | 9     | 33 | 2.33 | 1.2  | 46.6 |

Appendix (9) The leadership behavior of coaches of Sulaymaniyah karate clubs

| 18 | I allow the team to determine goal                                 | 2 | 2 | 5  | 16 | 8  | 33 | 2.21 | 1.07 | 44.2 |
|----|--|---|---|----|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 19 | I allow the players to implement their way<br>even if it is wrong. | 6 | 6 | 5  | 9  | 7  | 33 | 2.85 | 1.42 | 57   |
| 20 | I take players opinion on important subject in training            | 4 | 1 | 9  | 8  | 11 | 33 | 2.36 | 1.3  | 47.2 |
| 21 | I allow the players to work according to their speed               | 2 | 2 | 12 | 8  | 9  | 33 | 2.39 | 1.13 | 47.8 |
| 22 | I allow the players to pick the plan for the game                  | 4 | 4 | 7  | 10 | 8  | 33 | 2.58 | 1.3  | 51.6 |
| 23 | I work almost independently from players                           | 2 | 2 | 4  | 12 | 13 | 33 | 2.03 | 1.14 | 40.6 |
| 24 | I do not explain my work or decision                               | 4 | 2 | 8  | 12 | 7  | 33 | 2.52 | 1.23 | 50.4 |
| 25 | I keep my decision   | 4 | 3 | 6  | 8  | 12 | 33 | 2.36 | 1.37 | 47.2 |
| 26 | I have the right to make it easy for me                            | 2 | 2 | 9  | 12 | 8  | 33 | 2.33 | 1.09 | 46.6 |
| 27 | I speak in a way which does not give a chance for a question       | 1 | 4 | 4  | 14 | 10 | 33 | 2.15 | 1.08 | 43   |
| 28 | I help players to solve their personal issues                      | 1 | 4 | 8  | 14 | 6  | 33 | 2.39 | 1.01 | 47.8 |
| 29 | I support the players to solve issues between them                 | 0 | 5 | 6  | 12 | 10 | 33 | 2.18 | 1.03 | 43.6 |
| 30 | I keep the interests of players                                    | 1 | 1 | 5  | 15 | 11 | 33 | 1.97 | 0.94 | 39.4 |
| 31 | I do a favor to the players  | 3 | 2 | 8  | 12 | 8  | 33 | 2.39 | 1.18 | 47.8 |
| 32 | I express my feelings toward the players                           | 5 | 5 | 12 | 8  | 3  | 33 | 3.03 | 1.17 | 60.6 |
| 33 | I encourage the players to trust me                                | 1 | 2 | 4  | 12 | 14 | 33 | 1.91 | 1.03 | 38.2 |
| 34 | I encourage non formal relations between players and me            | 2 | 2 | 5  | 3  | 21 | 33 | 1.82 | 1.24 | 36.4 |
| 35 | I invite the players to my home                                    | 4 | 4 | 2  | 13 | 10 | 33 | 2.36 | 1.34 | 47.2 |
| 36 | I praise the good players in front of other players                | 0 | 0 | 4  | 11 | 18 | 33 | 1.58 | 0.7  | 31.6 |
| 37 | I tell the player when he does a good job                          | 1 | 3 | 2  | 12 | 15 | 33 | 1.88 | 1.07 | 37.6 |
| 38 | I make sure that a good player receive a reward                    | 4 | 4 | 8  | 8  | 9  | 33 | 2.58 | 1.33 | 51.6 |
| 39 | I appreciate the good player                                       | 2 | 1 | 5  | 14 | 11 | 33 | 2.06 | 1.07 | 41.2 |
| 40 | I give my trust to the trustable player.                           | 4 | 1 | 8  | 12 | 8  | 33 | 2.42 | 1.23 | 48.4 |

| #  | Questions   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N  | S.d  | x    | %    |
|----|---|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|----|------|------|------|
| 1  | My negative feeling helps me in my personal life                                | 1      | 2     | 5         | 11     | 14    | 33 | 1.94 | 1.04 | 38.8 |
| 2  | My true feeling leads me to success   | 2      | 2     | 6         | 10     | 13    | 33 | 2.09 | 1.16 | 41.8 |
| 3  | I can control my negative thinking  | 0      | 2     | 5         | 14     | 12    | 33 | 1.91 | 0.87 | 38.2 |
| 4  | After any disturbance I can control my self                                     | 4      | 6     | 4         | 8      | 11    | 33 | 2.52 | 1.42 | 50.4 |
| 5  | I can control my attitude and feelings  | 2      | 2     | 7         | 10     | 12    | 33 | 2.15 | 1.16 | 43   |
| 6  | I keep calm at any circumstances  | 3      | 3     | 5         | 13     | 9     | 33 | 2.33 | 1.22 | 46.6 |
| 7  | I can easily forget my negative feelings  | 4      | 2     | 8         | 7      | 12    | 33 | 2.36 | 1.34 | 47.2 |
| 8  | I can easily convert my feelings to positive                                    | 3      | 6     | 5         | 11     | 8     | 33 | 2.55 | 1.28 | 51   |
| 9  | At any danger I can control my feelings   | 0      | 0     | 5         | 16     | 12    | 33 | 1.79 | 0.69 | 35.8 |
| 10 | By my willing I can do what I need emotionally                                  | 1      | 1     | 6         | 13     | 12    | 33 | 1.97 | 0.97 | 39.4 |
| 11 | I can bring to the surface positive reflexes like joyful and fun                | 2      | 0     | 6         | 10     | 15    | 33 | 1.91 | 1.08 | 38.2 |
| 12 | During equity I lose time sense when I do duties                                | 3      | 5     | 4         | 16     | 5     | 33 | 2.55 | 1.18 | 51   |
| 13 | My feeling helps me to make critical decisions                                  | 1      | 5     | 5         | 9      | 13    | 33 | 2.15 | 1.18 | 43   |
| 14 | I stay optimistic and hopeful when I got defeated                               | 3      | 3     | 6         | 13     | 8     | 33 | 2.39 | 1.2  | 47.8 |
| 15 | I find it difficult to face life struggles and my anxiety and frustrate feeling | 1      | 1     | 6         | 12     | 13    | 33 | 1.94 | 0.98 | 38.8 |
| 16 | I am sensitive toward others needs  | 2      | 1     | 4         | 11     | 15    | 33 | 1.91 | 1.11 | 38.2 |
| 17 | I am a good listener to other people's problems                                 | 3      | 2     | 7         | 12     | 9     | 33 | 2.33 | 1.2  | 46.6 |
| 18 | I understand people's feelings  | 2      | 2     | 5         | 16     | 8     | 33 | 2.21 | 1.07 | 44.2 |
| 19 | I can read people feeling from their faces                                      | 6      | 6     | 5         | 9      | 7     | 33 | 2.85 | 1.42 | 57   |
| 20 | I am sensitive toward others emotional needs                                    | 4      | 1     | 9         | 8      | 11    | 33 | 2.36 | 1.3  | 47.2 |
| 21 | I feel harmonizing with other feelings  | 2      | 2     | 12        | 8      | 9     | 33 | 2.39 | 1.13 | 47.8 |
| 22 | I can easily understand peoples' feelings                                       | 4      | 4     | 7         | 10     | 8     | 33 | 2.58 | 1.3  | 51.6 |
| 23 | I am capable to feel the emotional site of the others                           | 2      | 2     | 4         | 12     | 13    | 33 | 2.03 | 1.14 | 40.6 |
| 24 | I feel people emotion even if they do not appear it                             | 4      | 2     | 8         | 12     | 7     | 33 | 2.52 | 1.23 | 50.4 |
| 25 | My strong sense for others feeling, makes me<br>empathy for them                | 4      | 3     | 6         | 8      | 12    | 33 | 2.36 | 1.37 | 47.2 |
| 26 | I can read the group feeling even if they do not reveal it                      | 2      | 2     | 9         | 12     | 8     | 33 | 2.33 | 1.09 | 46.6 |
| 27 | I am capable to reward myself after negative events                             | 1      | 4     | 4         | 14     | 10    | 33 | 2.15 | 1.08 | 43   |
| 28 | Even if I do not make a rapid success, I am still patient                       | 1      | 4     | 8         | 14     | 6     | 33 | 2.39 | 1.01 | 47.8 |
| 29 | When I do a boring activity but I still enjoy it.                               | 0      | 5     | 6         | 12     | 10    | 33 | 2.18 | 1.03 | 43.6 |

Appendix (10) The emotional intelligence of karate athletes of Sulaymaniyah karate clubs

| 30 | With life challenges, I try to be creative  | 1 | 1 | 5  | 15 | 11 | 33 | 1.97 | 0.94 | 39.4 |
|----|---|---|---|----|----|----|----|------|------|------|
| 31 | I keep calm when I do a job   | 3 | 2 | 8  | 12 | 8  | 33 | 2.39 | 1.18 | 47.8 |
| 32 | I can do important job with my all strength   | 5 | 5 | 12 | 8  | 3  | 33 | 3.03 | 1.17 | 60.6 |
| 33 | I can execute duties with a high activity and concentration                               | 1 | 2 | 4  | 12 | 14 | 33 | 1.91 | 1.03 | 38.2 |
| 34 | During pressure I rarely feel tired   | 2 | 2 | 5  | 3  | 21 | 33 | 1.82 | 1.24 | 36.4 |
| 35 | I can gain success under pressure   | 4 | 4 | 2  | 13 | 10 | 33 | 2.36 | 1.34 | 47.2 |
| 36 | I can focus on duties , when challenges are present                                       | 0 | 0 | 4  | 11 | 18 | 33 | 1.58 | 0.7  | 31.6 |
| 37 | I can focus on what is required from me   | 1 | 3 | 2  | 12 | 15 | 33 | 1.88 | 1.07 | 37.6 |
| 38 | I put my feeling a side when I perform duties   | 4 | 4 | 8  | 8  | 9  | 33 | 2.58 | 1.33 | 51.6 |
| 39 | I can contain the stress feeling that harden my job                                       | 2 | 1 | 5  | 14 | 11 | 33 | 2.06 | 1.07 | 41.2 |
| 40 | I can control the negative and positive emotions to<br>lead my life                       | 4 | 1 | 8  | 12 | 8  | 33 | 2.42 | 1.23 | 48.4 |
| 41 | The negative feeling helps me to change my life   | 2 | 2 | 6  | 13 | 10 | 33 | 2.18 | 1.11 | 43.6 |
| 42 | I can confront my negative feelings when it comes<br>to the decision making related to me | 2 | 3 | 3  | 14 | 11 | 33 | 2.12 | 1.15 | 42.4 |
| 43 | My negative feeling guides me to treat the others   | 0 | 3 | 2  | 17 | 11 | 33 | 1.91 | 0.87 | 38.2 |
| 44 | Always I can sense my sincere feeling   | 2 | 2 | 1  | 7  | 21 | 33 | 1.7  | 1.17 | 34   |
| 45 | I can express my feeling  | 3 | 3 | 8  | 8  | 11 | 33 | 2.36 | 1.27 | 47.2 |
| 46 | I am responsible for the feeling of others  | 2 | 2 | 9  | 11 | 9  | 33 | 2.3  | 1.11 | 46   |
| 47 | I don't care the negative emotions  | 4 | 4 | 8  | 11 | 6  | 33 | 2.67 | 1.25 | 53.4 |
| 48 | I understand that I have sensitive feeling  | 3 | 2 | 2  | 15 | 11 | 33 | 2.12 | 1.2  | 42.4 |
| 49 | I am full with bad mood   | 1 | 4 | 4  | 9  | 15 | 33 | 2    | 1.15 | 40   |
| 50 | I rarely be angry when people harass me with<br>their questions                           | 0 | 3 | 8  | 12 | 10 | 33 | 2.12 | 0.95 | 42.4 |
| 51 | I am aware of the social signs that others express them                                   | 3 | 5 | 5  | 11 | 9  | 33 | 2.45 | 1.28 | 49   |
| 52 | I can easily speak with foreigners  | 3 | 3 | 0  | 16 | 11 | 33 | 2.12 | 1.22 | 42.4 |
| 53 | I can influence others  | 4 | 2 | 6  | 12 | 9  | 33 | 2.39 | 1.28 | 47.8 |
| 54 | I consider myself as trustworthy  | 6 | 3 | 1  | 20 | 3  | 33 | 2.67 | 1.29 | 53.4 |
| 55 | I can give response to others needs and emotions  | 2 | 5 | 7  | 15 | 4  | 33 | 2.58 | 1.07 | 51.6 |
| 56 | I have a big influence on others to determine their goals                                 | 4 | 2 | 6  | 12 | 9  | 33 | 2.39 | 1.28 | 47.8 |
| 57 | People see that I am active towards others feeling  | 2 | 2 | 7  | 13 | 9  | 33 | 2.24 | 1.1  | 44.8 |
| 58 | When I get angry, my appearance cannot be noticed.  | 1 | 4 | 7  | 12 | 9  | 33 | 2.27 | 1.08 | 45.4 |

Appendix (11) The leadership behavior of coaches at Kurdistan region of Iraq karate club

|    |  | 1      | 1     |           | 1      |       |     |      |      |      |
|----|--|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|-----|------|------|------|
| #  | Question   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | Ν   | S.d  | x    | %    |
| 1  | I make sure that each player does what he can  | 14     | 29    | 20        | 13     | 24    | 100 | 2.96 | 1.39 | 59.2 |
| 2  | I explain the plan and style of the game for<br>each player                                | 20     | 22    | 20        | 26     | 12    | 100 | 3.12 | 1.32 | 62.4 |
| 3  | I give attention to correct every players' mistake   | 10     | 28    | 39        | 15     | 8     | 100 | 3.17 | 1.06 | 63.4 |
| 4  | I have to be sure that players understand the role and duties of the coach toward the team | 6      | 27    | 22        | 26     | 19    | 100 | 2.75 | 1.21 | 55   |
| 5  | Give individual instructions about karate skills   | 18     | 26    | 31        | 13     | 12    | 100 | 3.25 | 1.24 | 65   |
| 6  | Determine what to be done  | 15     | 25    | 35        | 16     | 9     | 100 | 3.21 | 1.15 | 64.2 |
| 7  | Make it clear for every player his responsibilities  | 18     | 34    | 29        | 11     | 8     | 100 | 3.43 | 1.14 | 68.6 |
| 8  | I expect that every player bear his responsibilities till the end                          | 12     | 27    | 28        | 14     | 19    | 100 | 2.99 | 1.28 | 59.8 |
| 9  | I point out the weak and strength point of each player.                                    | 12     | 25    | 28        | 26     | 9     | 100 | 3.05 | 1.16 | 61   |
| 10 | I give limited instruction to each player on<br>what to do in every circumstance           | 19     | 29    | 25        | 15     | 12    | 100 | 3.28 | 1.27 | 65.6 |
| 11 | I care about cooperation between players   | 11     | 29    | 38        | 9      | 13    | 100 | 3.16 | 1.15 | 63.2 |
| 12 | I explain how individual effort is important to the team                                   | 9      | 36    | 34        | 14     | 7     | 100 | 3.26 | 1.04 | 65.2 |
| 13 | I determine what is expected and requested from each player                                | 16     | 25    | 30        | 11     | 18    | 100 | 3.1  | 1.31 | 62   |
| 14 | I take players opinions on playing strategy<br>in limited competitive games.               | 12     | 33    | 23        | 12     | 20    | 100 | 3.05 | 1.31 | 61   |
| 15 | I take the group approve about the important ideas before (training, game)                 | 14     | 28    | 36        | 13     | 9     | 100 | 3.25 | 1.13 | 65   |
| 16 | I give a chance to the players to be a part of the decision                                | 20     | 22    | 24        | 15     | 19    | 100 | 3.09 | 1.39 | 61.8 |
| 17 | I encourage the player to rise suggestions on practicing methods                           | 11     | 36    | 33        | 16     | 4     | 100 | 3.34 | 1    | 66.8 |

| 18 | I allow the team to determine goal                                 | 13 | 29 | 31 | 17 | 10 | 100 | 3.18 | 1.16 | 63.6 |
|----|--|----|----|----|----|----|-----|------|------|------|
| 19 | I allow the players to implement their way<br>even if it is wrong. | 10 | 27 | 23 | 17 | 23 | 100 | 2.84 | 1.32 | 56.8 |
| 20 | I take players opinion on important subject in training            | 11 | 29 | 37 | 19 | 4  | 100 | 3.24 | 1.01 | 64.8 |
| 21 | I allow the players to work according to their speed               | 12 | 31 | 33 | 13 | 11 | 100 | 3.2  | 1.15 | 64   |
| 22 | I allow the players to pick the plan for the game                  | 9  | 35 | 29 | 16 | 11 | 100 | 3.15 | 1.13 | 63   |
| 23 | I work almost independently from players                           | 13 | 28 | 34 | 15 | 10 | 100 | 3.19 | 1.15 | 63.8 |
| 24 | I do not explain my work or decision                               | 11 | 31 | 35 | 13 | 10 | 100 | 3.2  | 1.11 | 64   |
| 25 | I keep my decision   | 11 | 29 | 38 | 14 | 8  | 100 | 3.21 | 1.07 | 64.2 |
| 26 | I have the right to make it easy for me                            | 9  | 27 | 22 | 23 | 19 | 100 | 2.84 | 1.26 | 56.8 |
| 27 | I speak in a way which does not give a chance for a question       | 12 | 31 | 29 | 20 | 8  | 100 | 3.19 | 1.13 | 63.8 |
| 28 | I help players to solve their personal issues                      | 20 | 24 | 33 | 9  | 14 | 100 | 3.27 | 1.27 | 65.4 |
| 29 | I support the players to solve issues between them                 | 15 | 31 | 33 | 19 | 2  | 100 | 3.38 | 1.02 | 67.6 |
| 30 | I keep the interests of players                                    | 12 | 32 | 33 | 17 | 6  | 100 | 3.27 | 1.07 | 65.4 |
| 31 | I do a favor to the players  | 17 | 29 | 30 | 18 | 6  | 100 | 3.33 | 1.13 | 66.6 |
| 32 | I express my feelings toward the players                           | 11 | 33 | 31 | 16 | 9  | 100 | 3.21 | 1.12 | 64.2 |
| 33 | I encourage the players to trust me                                | 12 | 28 | 35 | 14 | 11 | 100 | 3.16 | 1.15 | 63.2 |
| 34 | I encourage non formal relations between players and me            | 11 | 27 | 29 | 20 | 13 | 100 | 3.03 | 1.2  | 60.6 |
| 35 | I invite the players to my home                                    | 12 | 29 | 28 | 18 | 13 | 100 | 3.09 | 1.21 | 61.8 |
| 36 | I praise the good players in front of other players                | 13 | 28 | 36 | 13 | 10 | 100 | 3.21 | 1.13 | 64.2 |
| 37 | I tell the player when he does a good job                          | 9  | 31 | 34 | 16 | 10 | 100 | 3.13 | 1.1  | 62.6 |
| 38 | I make sure that a good player receive a reward                    | 12 | 29 | 33 | 13 | 13 | 100 | 3.14 | 1.18 | 62.8 |
| 39 | I appreciate the good player                                       | 10 | 36 | 29 | 16 | 9  | 100 | 3.22 | 1.11 | 64.4 |
| 40 | I give my trust to the trustable player.                           | 11 | 34 | 29 | 17 | 9  | 100 | 3.21 | 1.13 | 64.2 |

Appendix (12) The emotional intelligence of karate athletes at Kurdistan region of Iraq karate clubs

| #  | Questions   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never | N   | S.d  | x    | %    |
|----|---|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|-----|------|------|------|
| 1  | My negative feeling helps me in my personal life                                | 13     | 33    | 29        | 17     | 8     | 100 | 3.26 | 1.13 | 65.2 |
| 2  | My true feeling leads me to success   | 11     | 30    | 31        | 16     | 12    | 100 | 3.12 | 1.17 | 62.4 |
| 3  | I can control my negative thinking  | 14     | 29    | 29        | 13     | 15    | 100 | 3.14 | 1.25 | 62.8 |
| 4  | After any disturbance I can control my self                                     | 18     | 25    | 35        | 15     | 7     | 100 | 3.32 | 1.14 | 66.4 |
| 5  | I can control my attitude and feelings  | 13     | 22    | 39        | 12     | 14    | 100 | 3.08 | 1.19 | 61.6 |
| 6  | I keep calm at any circumstances  | 18     | 33    | 27        | 13     | 9     | 100 | 3.38 | 1.18 | 67.6 |
| 7  | I can easily forget my negative feelings  | 17     | 29    | 28        | 14     | 12    | 100 | 3.25 | 1.24 | 65   |
| 8  | I can easily convert my feelings to positive                                    | 17     | 28    | 30        | 19     | 6     | 100 | 3.31 | 1.14 | 66.2 |
| 9  | At any danger I can control my feelings   | 12     | 34    | 36        | 14     | 4     | 100 | 3.36 | 1    | 67.2 |
| 10 | By my willing I can do what I need emotionally                                  | 11     | 29    | 28        | 20     | 12    | 100 | 3.07 | 1.19 | 61.4 |
| 11 | I can bring to the surface positive reflexes like joyful and fun                | 13     | 25    | 35        | 17     | 10    | 100 | 3.14 | 1.15 | 62.8 |
| 12 | During equity I lose time sense when I do duties                                | 18     | 28    | 33        | 15     | 6     | 100 | 3.37 | 1.12 | 67.4 |
| 13 | My feeling helps me to make critical decisions                                  | 17     | 29    | 30        | 17     | 7     | 100 | 3.32 | 1.15 | 66.4 |
| 14 | I stay optimistic and hopeful when I got defeated                               | 11     | 31    | 37        | 14     | 7     | 100 | 3.25 | 1.05 | 65   |
| 15 | I find it difficult to face life struggles and my anxiety and frustrate feeling | 20     | 30    | 29        | 15     | 6     | 100 | 3.43 | 1.14 | 68.6 |
| 16 | I am sensitive toward others needs  | 19     | 33    | 27        | 14     | 7     | 100 | 3.43 | 1.15 | 68.6 |
| 17 | I am a good listener to other people's problems                                 | 18     | 31    | 30        | 13     | 8     | 100 | 3.38 | 1.16 | 67.6 |
| 18 | I understand people's feelings  | 11     | 38    | 29        | 11     | 11    | 100 | 3.27 | 1.14 | 65.4 |
| 19 | I can read people feeling from their faces                                      | 12     | 33    | 25        | 12     | 18    | 100 | 3.09 | 1.28 | 61.8 |
| 20 | I am sensitive toward others emotional needs                                    | 18     | 28    | 33        | 14     | 7     | 100 | 3.36 | 1.14 | 67.2 |
| 21 | I feel harmonizing with other feelings  | 15     | 30    | 29        | 15     | 11    | 100 | 3.23 | 1.2  | 64.6 |
| 22 | I can easily understand peoples' feelings                                       | 14     | 34    | 33        | 12     | 7     | 100 | 3.36 | 1.08 | 67.2 |
| 23 | I am capable to feel the emotional site of the others                           | 15     | 35    | 30        | 12     | 8     | 100 | 3.37 | 1.12 | 67.4 |
| 24 | I feel people emotion even if they do not appear<br>it                          | 10     | 29    | 38        | 18     | 5     | 100 | 3.21 | 1.01 | 64.2 |
| 25 | My strong sense for others feeling, makes me<br>empathy for them                | 11     | 31    | 30        | 20     | 8     | 100 | 3.17 | 1.11 | 63.4 |
| 26 | I can read the group feeling even if they do not reveal it                      | 9      | 29    | 31        | 22     | 9     | 100 | 3.07 | 1.11 | 61.4 |
| 27 | I am capable to reward myself after negative events                             | 17     | 31    | 27        | 18     | 7     | 100 | 3.33 | 1.16 | 66.6 |

|    | Even if I do not make a rapid success, I am still   |    |    |    |    |    |     |      |      |      |
|----|---|----|----|----|----|----|-----|------|------|------|
| 28 | patient   | 12 | 29 | 28 | 20 | 11 | 100 | 3.11 | 1.18 | 62.2 |
| 29 | When I do a boring activity but I still enjoy it.   | 13 | 31 | 30 | 16 | 10 | 100 | 3.21 | 1.16 | 64.2 |
| 30 | With life challenges, I try to be creative  | 14 | 19 | 39 | 20 | 8  | 100 | 3.11 | 1.12 | 62.2 |
| 31 | I keep calm when I do a job   | 11 | 29 | 31 | 15 | 14 | 100 | 3.08 | 1.2  | 61.6 |
| 32 | I can do important job with my all strength   | 20 | 33 | 30 | 12 | 5  | 100 | 3.51 | 1.09 | 70.2 |
| 33 | I can execute duties with a high activity and concentration                               | 15 | 35 | 33 | 13 | 4  | 100 | 3.44 | 1.02 | 68.8 |
| 34 | During pressure I rarely feel tired   | 12 | 31 | 31 | 18 | 8  | 100 | 3.21 | 1.12 | 64.2 |
| 35 | I can gain success under pressure   | 13 | 33 | 25 | 20 | 9  | 100 | 3.21 | 1.17 | 64.2 |
| 36 | I can focus on duties, when challenges are present  | 15 | 29 | 36 | 9  | 11 | 100 | 3.28 | 1.16 | 65.6 |
| 37 | I can focus on what is required from me   | 10 | 35 | 30 | 20 | 5  | 100 | 3.25 | 1.04 | 65   |
| 38 | I put my feeling a side when I perform duties   | 9  | 28 | 31 | 26 | 6  | 100 | 3.08 | 1.06 | 61.6 |
| 39 | I can contain the stress feeling that harden my job                                       | 14 | 27 | 32 | 17 | 10 | 100 | 3.18 | 1.17 | 63.6 |
| 40 | I can control the negative and positive emotions<br>to lead my life                       | 13 | 32 | 28 | 15 | 12 | 100 | 3.19 | 1.2  | 63.8 |
| 41 | The negative feeling helps me to change my life   | 11 | 35 | 27 | 17 | 10 | 100 | 3.2  | 1.15 | 64   |
| 42 | I can confront my negative feelings when it<br>comes to the decision making related to me | 9  | 28 | 29 | 25 | 9  | 100 | 3.03 | 1.12 | 60.6 |
| 43 | My negative feeling guides me to treat the others   | 17 | 30 | 31 | 16 | 6  | 100 | 3.36 | 1.12 | 67.2 |
| 44 | Always I can sense my sincere feeling   | 20 | 28 | 34 | 11 | 7  | 100 | 3.43 | 1.13 | 68.6 |
| 45 | I can express my feeling  | 12 | 30 | 30 | 22 | 6  | 100 | 3.2  | 1.1  | 64   |
| 46 | I am responsible for the feeling of others  | 14 | 31 | 30 | 18 | 7  | 100 | 3.27 | 1.12 | 65.4 |
| 47 | I don't care the negative emotions  | 15 | 33 | 29 | 13 | 10 | 100 | 3.3  | 1.17 | 66   |
| 48 | I understand that I have sensitive feeling  | 13 | 35 | 27 | 16 | 9  | 100 | 3.27 | 1.15 | 65.4 |
| 49 | I am full with bad mood   | 17 | 28 | 32 | 11 | 12 | 100 | 3.27 | 1.22 | 65.4 |
| 50 | I rarely be angry when people harass me with<br>their questions                           | 10 | 35 | 33 | 7  | 15 | 100 | 3.18 | 1.18 | 63.6 |
| 51 | I am aware of the social signs that others<br>express them                                | 11 | 34 | 29 | 18 | 8  | 100 | 3.22 | 1.11 | 64.4 |
| 52 | I can easily speak with foreigners  | 14 | 30 | 28 | 19 | 9  | 100 | 3.21 | 1.17 | 64.2 |
| 53 | I can influence others  | 12 | 29 | 31 | 17 | 11 | 100 | 3.14 | 1.17 | 62.8 |
| 54 | I consider myself as trustworthy  | 13 | 33 | 29 | 13 | 12 | 100 | 3.22 | 1.19 | 64.4 |
| 55 | I can give response to others needs and emotions  | 10 | 35 | 30 | 15 | 10 | 100 | 3.2  | 1.12 | 64   |
| 56 | I have a big influence on others to determine<br>their goals                              | 9  | 36 | 35 | 9  | 11 | 100 | 3.23 | 1.09 | 64.6 |
| 57 | People see that I am active towards others feeling  | 18 | 25 | 33 | 15 | 9  | 100 | 3.28 | 1.18 | 65.6 |
| 58 | When I get angry, my appearance cannot be noticed   | 14 | 30 | 33 | 12 | 11 | 100 | 3.24 | 1.17 | 64.8 |

#### Appendix (13) Leadership behavior Scale of coaches

Dear coach.

This is a Questionnaire form to measure the leadership behavior that is used by karate trainer team for the sport clubs in Kurdistan region- Iraq. We ask your kind cooperation by answering accurate and logically for each question by putting (X) in the front of what you believe is the best answer. Looking forward to meet your efforts, in purpose of serving the athletic movement in Kurdistan region-Iraq.

The Researcher; Yousif .R. Saeed

The club/ city: Signature: Date:

# Leadership Behavior Scale

| #  | Question   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never |
|----|--|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|
| 1  | I make sure that each player does what he can  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 2  | I explain the plan and style of the game for each player                                   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 3  | I give attention to correct every players' mistake   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 4  | I have to be sure that players understand the role and duties of the coach toward the team |        |       |           |        |       |
| 5  | Give individual instructions about karate skills   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 6  | Determine what to be done  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 7  | Make it clear for every player his responsibilities  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 8  | I expect that every player bear his responsibilities till the end                          |        |       |           |        |       |
| 9  | I point out the weak and strength point of each player.                                    |        |       |           |        |       |
| 10 | I give limited instruction to each player on what to do in every circumstance              |        |       |           |        |       |
| 11 | I care about cooperation between players   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 12 | I explain how individual effort is important to the team                                   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 13 | I determine what is expected and requested from each player                                |        |       |           |        |       |
| 14 | I take players opinions on playing strategy in limited competitive games.                  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 15 | I take the group approve about the important ideas before (training, game)                 |        |       |           |        |       |
| 16 | I give a chance to the players to be a part of the decision                                |        |       |           |        |       |
| 17 | I encourage the player to rise suggestions on practicing methods                           |        |       |           |        |       |
| 18 | I allow the team to determine goal   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 19 | I allow the players to implement their way even if it is wrong.                            |        |       |           |        |       |
| 20 | I take players opinion on important subject in training                                    |        |       |           |        |       |
| 21 | I allow the players to work according to their speed                                       |        |       |           |        |       |
| 22 | I allow the players to pick the plan for the game  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 23 | I work almost independently from players   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 24 | I do not explain my work or decision   |        |       |           |        |       |

| 25 | I keep my decision   |  |  |  |  |  |
|----|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 26 | I have the right to make it easy for me                      |  |  |  |  |  |
| 27 | I speak in a way which does not give a chance for a question |  |  |  |  |  |
| 28 | I help players to solve their personal issues                |  |  |  |  |  |
| 29 | I support the players to solve issues between them           |  |  |  |  |  |
| 30 | I keep the interests of players                              |  |  |  |  |  |
| 31 | I do a favor to the players                                  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 32 | I express my feelings toward the players                     |  |  |  |  |  |
| 33 | I encourage the players to trust me                          |  |  |  |  |  |
| 34 | I encourage non formal relations between players and me      |  |  |  |  |  |
| 35 | I invite the players to my home                              |  |  |  |  |  |
| 36 | I praise the good players in front of other players          |  |  |  |  |  |
| 37 | I tell the player when he does a good job                    |  |  |  |  |  |
| 38 | I make sure that a good player receive a reward              |  |  |  |  |  |
| 39 | I appreciate the good player                                 |  |  |  |  |  |
| 40 | I give my trust to the trustable player                      |  |  |  |  |  |

#### Appendix (14)

Emotional Intelligence Scale of karate athletes

Dear players.

This is a Questionnaire form to measure the leadership behavior that is used for karate mal team for the sport clubs in Kurdistan region- Iraq. We ask your kind cooperation by answering accurate and logically for each question by putting (X) in the front of what you find is best answer. Looking forward to meet your efforts, in purpose to serve the athletic movement in Kurdistan region-Iraq

The researcher; Yousif. R Saeed

The club/ city: Signature: Date:

# **Emotional Intelligence Scale**

| #  | Questions   | Always | Often | Sometimes | Rarely | Never |
|----|---|--------|-------|-----------|--------|-------|
| 1  | My negative feeling helps me in my personal life                                |        |       |           |        |       |
| 2  | My true feeling leads me to success   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 3  | I can control my negative thinking  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 4  | After any disturbance I can control my self                                     |        |       |           |        |       |
| 5  | I can control my attitude and feelings  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 6  | I keep calm at any circumstances  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 7  | I can easily forget my negative feelings  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 8  | I can easily convert my feelings to positive                                    |        |       |           |        |       |
| 9  | At any danger I can control my feelings   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 10 | By my willing I can do what I need emotionally                                  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 11 | I can bring to the surface positive reflexes like joyful and fun                |        |       |           |        |       |
| 12 | During equity I lose time sense when I do duties                                |        |       |           |        |       |
| 13 | My feeling helps me to make critical decisions                                  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 14 | I stay optimistic and hopeful when I got defeated                               |        |       |           |        |       |
| 15 | I find it difficult to face life struggles and my anxiety and frustrate feeling |        |       |           |        |       |
| 16 | I am sensitive toward others needs  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 17 | I am a good listener to other people's problems                                 |        |       |           |        |       |
| 18 | I understand people's feelings  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 19 | I can read people feeling from their faces                                      |        |       |           |        |       |
| 20 | I am sensitive toward others emotional needs                                    |        |       |           |        |       |
| 21 | I feel harmonizing with other feelings  |        |       |           |        |       |
| 22 | I can easily understand peoples' feelings                                       |        |       |           |        |       |
| 23 | I am capable to feel the emotional site of the others                           |        |       |           |        |       |
| 24 | I feel people emotion even if they do not appear it                             |        |       |           |        |       |
| 25 | My strong sense for others feeling, makes me empathy for them                   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 26 | I can read the group feeling even if they do not reveal it                      | 1      |       |           |        |       |
| 27 | I am capable to reward myself after negative events                             |        |       |           |        |       |
| 28 | Even if I do not make a rapid success, I am still patient                       |        |       |           |        |       |
| 29 | When I do a boring activity but I still enjoy it.                               |        |       |           |        |       |
| 30 | With life challenges, I try to be creative                                      |        |       |           |        |       |
| 31 | I keep calm when I do a job   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 32 | I can do important job with my all strength                                     |        |       |           |        |       |
| 33 | I can execute duties with a high activity and concentration                     |        |       |           |        |       |
| 34 | During pressure I rarely feel tired   | 1      | 1     | -         |        |       |
| 35 | I can gain success under pressure   |        |       |           |        |       |
| 36 | I can focus on duties, when challenges are present                              |        |       |           |        |       |
| 37 | I can focus on what is required from me   |        |       |           |        |       |

| 38 | I put my feeling a side when I perform duties   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|----|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 39 | I can contain the stress feeling that harden my job                                       |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 40 | I can control the negative and positive emotions to lead my life                          |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 41 | The negative feeling helps me to change my life   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 42 | ·2 I can confront my negative feelings when it comes to the decision making related to me |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 43 | My negative feeling guides me to treat the others   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 44 | Always I can sense my sincere feeling   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 45 | I can express my feeling  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 46 | I am responsible for the feeling of others  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 47 | I don't care the negative emotions  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 48 | I understand that I have sensitive feeling  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 49 | I am full with bad mood   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 50 | I rarely be angry when people harass me with their questions                              |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 51 | I am aware of the social signs that others express them                                   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 52 | I can easily speak with foreigners  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 53 | I can influence others  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 54 | I consider myself as trustworthy  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 55 | I can give response to others needs and emotions  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 56 | I have a big influence on others to determine their goals                                 |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 57 | People see that I am active towards others feeling  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 58 | When I get angry, my appearance cannot be noticed.  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |

# Appendix (15)

| N0 | Team Names               | Character     | Work places            |
|----|--------------------------|---------------|------------------------|
| 1. | DR.KHALEED MHAMMAD SHABA | Professor. Dr | University of Duhok    |
| 2. | DR.DIYAR TAYB            | Doctor        | Director of veterinary |
| 3. | DR.NATHEM AL WATAR       | Professor. Dr | University of Mosel    |
| 4. | MR.FALAH HASAN           | Teacher       | University of Duhok    |
| 5. | MR.CHALAK AL ATROSHI     | Teacher       | University of Duhok    |
| б. | MR.BELAL KHAIREI         | Teacher       | University of Duhok    |
| 7. | MR.HARMAN MHMMED SALH    | Teacher       | University of Duhok    |
| 8. | MR.SARKAFT RASHEED       | Teacher       | University of Duhok    |
| 9. | MR.BURHANULDEEN ISSA     | Teacher       | Hospital of Duhok      |
| 10 | MR.SIZAR SULAIMAN ESHAQ  | Teacher       | Young's Sports Duhok   |
| 11 | MR.SAIF AL AMORY         | Teacher       | University of Duhok    |
| 12 | MR. MIJBEER MOHAMMD      | Teacher       | School of Duhok        |

# The names of the team who helped the researcher

#### Appendix (16)

The following list that help me for translation and corrections in this study:

1. Huzan Abdullah Yousif Assistant Lecturer Master Iraq, Duhok University majid.jumaah@yahoo.com

2. Aveen Sarma Assistant Lecture Master Iraq.Duhok University <u>Aveensarma85@gmail.com</u>

| Turnitin Originality Report<br>Thesis by Yousef Rasheed<br>From TEZ 2 (TEZ)   | æ<br>turn <b>it</b> in             |
|---|------------------------------------|
| <ul> <li>Processed on 15-May-2017 12:37 EEST</li> <li>ID: 814368641</li> <li>Word Count: 8532</li> </ul>  |                                    |
| Similarity Index<br>14%<br>Similarity by Source   |                                    |
| Internet Sources:<br>5%<br>Publications:<br>4%<br>Student Papers:<br>10%  |                                    |
| sources:  |                                    |
| 2% match (student papers from 30-Jul-2014)Submitted to Eastern Washington University on 2014-07-30  |                                    |
| 2% match (publications)<br><u>Laborde, S., F. Dosseville, and M. S. Allen. "Emotional intelligence in sport and ex-<br/>systematic review : Emotional intelligence", Scandinavian Journal of Medicine a<br/>Sports, 2015.</u> | <u>kercise: A</u><br>nd Science in |
| 2% match (student papers from 12-Dec-2016)Submitted to Arab Open University on 2016-12-12   |                                    |
| 4 1% match (Internet from 25-Mar-2016)<br>http://www.isca.in/PHY_EDU_SCI/Archive/v4/i2/1.ISCA-RJPES-2016-001.pdf  |                                    |
| <b>5</b> 1% match (student papers from 26-Feb-2016) <b>Submitted to AUT University on 2016-02-26</b>  |                                    |
| 6 1% match (student papers from 15-Nov-2013)<br>Submitted to Universiti Teknologi Malaysia on 2013-11-15  |                                    |
| 7       1% match (Internet from 08-Nov-2015)         http://www.researchgate.net/publication/263809435_Transformational_Leadership_a  | <u>nd Job Satisfaction in t</u>    |
| 8 1% match (student papers from 05-Nov-2015)<br>Submitted to Mesa State College on 2015-11-05   |                                    |
| 9 1% match (Internet from 25-Apr-2016)<br>http://media.proquest.com/media/pq/classic/doc/3052720021/fmt/ai/rep/NF<br>   | <u>'DF?</u>                        |
| 10 < 1% match (student papers from 01-Nov-2016)<br>Submitted to Colorado State University, Global Campus on 2016-11-01  |                                    |
| 11 < 1% match (student papers from 17-Dec-2014)<br>Submitted to 60892 on 2014-12-17   |                                    |
| 12 < 1% match (Internet from 01-Dec-2016)<br>http://www.allresearchjournal.com/archives/2016/vol2issue4/PartA/2-3-121.  | pdf                                |

| 13           | < 1% match (student papers from 01-Jul-2014)<br>Submitted to Indiana State University on 2014-07-01   |
|--------------|---|
| 14           | < 1% match (Internet from 28-Apr-2016)<br>http://uir.unisa.ac.za/bitstream/handle/10500/1330/dissertation.pdf?<br>isAllowed=y&sequence=1  |
| 15           | < 1% match (Internet from 25-Apr-2016)<br>http://media.proquest.com/media/pg/classic/doc/3853956331/fmt/ai/rep/NPDF?<br>s=d4mw8jck8xCn26m3vTYn8nuzphQ%3D  |
| 16           | < 1% match (publications)<br><u>LL. WYNN JONES. "PRESENT DAY THEORIES OF INTELLECTUAL FACTORS (GENERAL,</u><br><u>GROUP, AND SPECIFIC).*", British Journal of Educational Psychology, 02/1933</u>                               |
| 17           | < 1% match (student papers from 28-Dec-2015)<br>Submitted to University of the West Indies on 2015-12-28  |
| 18           | < 1% match (student papers from 30-Oct-2014)<br><u>Submitted to Fatima College on 2014-10-30</u>  |
| 19           | < 1% match (publications)<br>Frank J. Landy. "Some historical and scientific issues related to research on emotional<br>intelligence", Journal of Organizational Behavior, 06/2005  |
| 20           | < 1% match (student papers from 19-Dec-2013)<br>Submitted to Laureate Higher Education Group on 2013-12-19  |
| 21           | < 1% match (student papers from 21-Apr-2016)<br>Submitted to University of Bath on 2016-04-21   |
| 22           | < 1% match (student papers from 21-Apr-2017)<br><u>Submitted to Manchester Metropolitan University on 2017-04-21</u>  |
| 23           | < 1% match (student papers from 25-Sep-2012)<br>Submitted to CTI Education Group on 2012-09-25  |
| 24<br>Therap | < 1% match (publications)<br>Malouff, John M., Nicola S. Schutte, and Einar B. Thorsteinsson. "Trait Emotional Intelligence<br>and Romantic Relationship Satisfaction: A Meta-Analysis", American Journal of Family<br>y, 2014. |
| 25           | < 1% match (student papers from 15-Jul-2014)<br>Submitted to Laureate Higher Education Group on 2014-07-15  |
| 26           | < 1% match (student papers from 21-Jul-2013)<br><u>Submitted to University of Hull on 2013-07-21</u>  |
| 27           | < 1% match (Internet from 19-Jun-2006)<br>http://www.academon.com/lib/essay/emotional-intelligence-new-iq.html  |
| 28           | < 1% match (Internet from 26-Jun-2016)<br>http://www.trans4mind.com/heart/eq.html   |
| 29           | < 1% match (publications)<br>Wasserman, Ilene C "Strengthening Interpersonal Awareness and Fostering Relational<br>Eloquence", Diversity at Work The Practice of Inclusion, 2014.   |